

COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
COMMISSION CHAMBERS
TUESDAY, MARCH 8, 2022 6:00 P.M.

Welcome to your City Commission Meeting – Please turn off or silence all cell phones during the meeting Meetings are televised everyday on Channel 2 at 6 p.m. and midnight and available for viewing on YouTube

CALL TO ORDER – Pledge of Allegiance Followed by Silent Meditation

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS:

1. New Employee Welcome

(pg. 02)

Action: Motion (pg. 05)

OLD BUSINESS:

Consideration of Previous Meeting Minutes:

2. Minutes from February 22, 2022 Regular Meeting

NEW BUSINESS:

Public Comment: (i.e. Items not listed on the agenda or receipt of petitions)-Public comment is limited to 2-3 minutes and no action will be taken by the Commission on public comment items - Please state your name and address. A signup sheet will be provided in the commission chambers for anyone wishing to speak. Fill out the sheet with requested information when you enter the meeting.

General Items:

3. Mayor's Appointments Action: Motion (pg. 10)

4. 2022 General Obligation Bonds and Temporary Notes Proceedings (pg. 11)

a. Present Results of Bond and Notes Sale

b. Accept Proposals for General Obligation Bonds, Series 2022-A
 c. Second Consideration Ordinance 8182 General Obligation Bonds, Series 2022-A
 d. Adopt Resolution B-2309 Issuance of 2022-A General Obligation Bonds
 e. Accept Proposals for Temporary Notes Sales, Series A2022
 f. Adopt Resolution B-2310 Issuance of A2022 Temporary Notes

Action: Motion
Action: Motion
Action: Motion

Bids, Contracts and Agreements:

5. Consider Purchase of Additional Information Technology Storage Action: Motion (pg. 57)

First Consideration Ordinance:

6. First Consideration Ordinance to Rescind Special Use Permit 539 Nipper Lane Action: Consensus (pg. 62)

Consent Agenda:

Claims for February 19, 2022, through March 4, 2022, in the amount of \$1,948,556.53; Net amount for Payroll #04 effective February 25, 2022 in the amount of \$348,591.39 (Includes Police and Fire Pension in the amount of \$9,038.36)

Action: Motion

Other:

Adjournment Action: Motion

POLICY REPORT 22-01

New Employee Welcome Ceremony

March 8, 2022

Prepared by:

Reviewed by:

Lona Lanter HR Director

Paul Kramer

City Manager

<u>ISSUE</u>: To welcome newly hired regular full time and part time City of Leavenworth employees.

<u>BACKGROUND</u>: The City has established a program of welcoming new employees to the City Team. As part of this program, each new employee will be announced/introduced by the Mayor or the Mayor Pro Tem at a regular meeting of the Leavenworth City Commission. Each employee will also be presented with a welcome card and City of Leavenworth pin from their Department. Brief background information of each employee listed below is attached.

EMPLOYEES TO BE WELCOMED:

Austin McDaniel

Terry Bair

Noah Lovelady

Justin Burris

Michael McMannamy

Jessica Sanders

Ashlyn Gardner

Joyce Howell

Christopher Herrmann

Bobby Covey

Jacob Gooch

Robert Large

Breanna Comer

Stephen Whiteman

Joshua Bush

Sarah Bodensteiner

Lesley Brown

Holly Cooper

Chelsey Gorgoglione

Solid Waste Collector

Park Technician I

WPC Operator I

Park Technician I

Solid Waste Collector

Office Clerk II

Police Officer

PT Court Clerk

Streets Equipment Operator I

PT RFCC Custodian

Solid Waste Laborer

Zoning & Code Administrator

Kennel Attendant

Traffic Control Technician

Streets Equipment Operator I

City Clerk

Court Clerk

Administrative Clerk - Streets

Police Officer

Austin McDaniel – Austin was hired on May 6, 2021, as a Solid Waste Laborer. He was selected for Solid Waste Collector on June 10, 2021. Austin graduated from Leavenworth High School. He previously worked with Lindsey Jo, Inc as a Delivery Driver.

Terry Bair – Terry was hired on August 5, 2021, as a Park Tech I. Terry graduated from Leavenworth High School and received his Bachelor's Degree in Liberal Arts from Excelsior College in Albany, NY. He was previously employed with Home Depot and the VA National Cemetery and also previously worked for the City as a Police Officer.

Noah Lovelady – Noah was hired on August 19, 2021, as WPC Operator I. Noah graduated from Henderson High School in Henderson, TX. He previously worked at Wal-Mart in the Electronics department.

Justin Burris – Justin was hired on September 2, 2021, as a Park Tech I. Justin graduated from Pleasant Ridge High School and previously owned and operated a golf shop in downtown Leavenworth. Justin worked for Trails West Golf Course for over 5 years before opening his own golf shop.

Michael McMannamy – Michael was hired on September 16, 2021, as a Solid Waste Collector. Michael graduated from Project Stay. He previously worked for Triumph Foods as a Line Worker and Century Van Lines as a Crew Leader.

Jessica Sanders – Jessica was hired on October 7, 2021, as Office Clerk II in the City Clerk's Office. Jessica received her GED from Flint Hills Job Corps Center and earned a Business and Computer Technology Certificate from Manhattan Area Technical College. She previously worked for Leavenworth County, holding positions of Auto/Title Tax Clerk, Human Services Specialist and Assistant to Nutrition Coordinator.

Ashlyn Gardner – Ashlyn was hired on October 7, 2021, as a Police Officer. Ashlyn graduated from Leavenworth High School and previously worked as a Transportation Security Officer for VMD Systems Integrators.

Joyce Howell – Joyce was hired on October 14, 2021, as a PT Court Clerk. Joyce graduated from Tempe High School and received her Bachelor's Degree in Decorative Arts in Business from Arizona State University and her Master's Degree in Communication Disorders from University of Texas. Joyce previously worked for Northwest Regional Education Service District as a Speech Language Pathologist for over 22 years.

Christopher Herrmann – Chris was hired on November 4, 2021, as a Streets Equipment Operator I. Chris graduated from Parkway Central High School and previously worked as a Truck Driver for Core Carrier.

Bobby Covey - Bobby was hired on December 2, 2021, as a PT RFCC Custodian. Bobby graduated from Amarillo High School and has worked for the City in a temporary, seasonal capacity as a Park Laborer since 2019.

Jacob Gooch – Jacob was hired on December 9, 2021, as a Streets Equipment Operator I and moved to the Solid Waste Laborer position on January 20, 2022. Jacob received his GED from Leavenworth High School and previously worked for Brill, Inc. as an Operator and Henke Manufacturing as a Material Handler.

Robert Large - Robert was hired on January 6, 2022, as a Zoning & Code Administrator. Robert graduated from West Platte R2 High School and previously worked for DH Pace Inc. as the Operations Manager and for The Home Depot as a Store Manager in Atlanta, GA.

Breanna Comer – Breanna was hired on January 13, 2022, as a Kennel Attendant. Breanna graduated from Leavenworth High School and has worked for the City in a temporary, seasonal capacity as a Concession Stand Assistant Manager since 2019.

Stephen Scott Whiteman – Scott was hired on January 13, 2022, as a Traffic Control Technician. Scott received his GED from Royal Valley High School and previously worked for Barren Outdoor Solutions as the Site Manager. Scott has also operated his own businesses as owner/operator of a trucking company providing small load freight transportation services and a lawn care business.

Joshua Bush – Josh was hired on January 13, 2022, as a Streets Equipment Operator I. Josh graduated from Leavenworth High School and previously worked for Century Van Lines as a Crew Lead/Driver.

Sarah Bodensteiner – Sarah was hired on January 20, 2022, as City Clerk. Sarah graduated from Shawnee Mission Northwest High School and received her Bachelor of Arts in English from the University of Missouri. Sarah was previously employed at the City of Lansing for over 7 years as their City Clerk.

Lesley Brown – Lesley was hired on January 20, 2022, as a Court Clerk. Lesley graduated from Polo High School in Polo, IL. She was previously employed with Leavenworth County as an Account Specialist.

Holly Cooper – Holly was hired on January 20, 2022, as Administrative Clerk for Streets Division. Holly graduated from Basehor-Linwood High School and was previously employed with Roberts Chevrolet Buick as Accounts Receivable/Accounts Payable and BDC Manager.

Chelsey Gorgoglione - Chelsey was hired on February 17, 2022, as a Police Officer. Chelsey graduated from Hazleton Area High School and received her Bachelor's Degree in Business Admin & HR Management from Cedar Crest College. She previously worked at US Patriot and Wal-Mart as an Associate and for Patlin Services as a Stocker/Project Manager Trainee before staying home to raise her children.



CITY OF LEAVENWORTH 100 N. 5th Street Leavenworth, Kansas 66048

City Commission Regular Meeting Commission Chambers Tuesday, February 22, 2022 6:00 p.m.

CALL TO ORDER - The Governing Body met for a regular meeting and the following commission members were present in the commission chambers: Mayor Camalla Leonhard, Mayor Pro-Tem Jermaine Wilson, Commissioners Nancy Bauder, Edd Hingula and Griff Martin.

Staff members present: City Manager Paul Kramer, Assistant City Manager Penny Holler, Finance Director Ruby Maline, Deputy Finance Director Roberta Beier, Parks and Recreation Director Steve Grant, Parks and Recreation Superintendent Brian Bailey, Public Works Director Brian Faust, Project Manager Michael Stephan, Planning and Community Development Director Julie Hurley, Ben Struby attended for City Attorney David E. Waters, and City Clerk Sarah Bodensteiner.

Mayor Leonhard asked everyone to stand for the pledge of allegiance followed by silent meditation.

OLD BUSINESS:

Consideration of Previous Meeting Minutes:

Commissioner Hingula moved to accept the minutes from the February 8, 2022 regular meeting. Commissioner Wilson seconded the motion and the motion was unanimously approved. Mayor Leonhard declared the motion carried 5-0.

Public Comment: (Public comment on non-agenda items or receipt of petitions- limited to 2-3 minutes)
None

General Items:

Acceptance of Land for Public Purposes (2nd Avenue Estates Final Plat) – Planning and Community Development Director Julie Hurley introduced the request to accept the land for public purposes for the 2nd Avenue Estates Final Plat. The property was rezoned to a PUD in 2003 to accommodate the development of age-restricted townhomes. The Planning Commission considered this item at their February 7, 2022 meeting and voted unanimously to approve the plat. The plat is before the Commission for the purpose of accepting the dedication of land for public purposes in the form of public utility easements and right-of-way.

Commissioner Hingula:

Asked for clarification of the location of the development on 2nd Avenue

Ms. Hurley:

Directly north of the Evergy building

Commissioner Bauder moved to accept the dedication of land for public purposes for the 2nd Avenue Estates Final Plat. Commissioner Wilson seconded the motion and the motion was unanimously approved. Mayor Leonhard declared the motion carried 5-0.

Consider Parking Lot Repair Location for 2022 & 2023 Pavement Management Program — City Manager Paul Kramer introduced the item. A few years ago the City began identifying City Parking lots to repair with the annual pavement management program. The Commission has the ability to choose 2 parking lots this evening, one for 2022 and the other to be repaired in 2023. The following parking lots were identified as options for repair: 100 N. 5th Street, 100 Delaware Street, 201 Cherokee, and 417 Spruce Street.

Commissioner Bauder:

- Is the adjacent parking lot the City's or does it belong to Mutual Savings
- Do you have any comments on which is the most dire
- Could you redesign the lot on Delaware when it's on the list to be done to fix the layout
- Would like to see the City Hall parking lot done in 2022

Public Works Director Brian Faust:

- City Hall parking lot is the worst, the one across from the Community Center would be the least dire
- The library lot could definitely use some work

Mayor Leonhard:

Would like to see the library parking lot done this year and City Hall next year

Commissioner Martin moved to include the parking lot at the Library for the 2022 Pavement Management Program and the parking lot at City Hall for the 2023 Pavement Management Program. Commissioner Wilson seconded the motion and the motion was unanimously approved. Mayor Leonhard declared the motion carried 5-0.

Resolutions:

Resolution B-2308 Annual Report for Stormwater 2021 – Public Works Director Brian Faust presented for adoption the annual Kansas Department of Health and Environment (KDHE) report for 2021 Stormwater activities.

Mayor Leonhard:

• Asked about the email that was submitted

Mr. Faust:

That area was looked at last year and is included as part of the pavement management for 2022, so
it should be addressed.

Commissioner Wilson moved to adopt Resolution B-2308 approving the annual KDHE report for 2021 Stormwater activities. Commissioner Martin seconded the motion and the motion was unanimously approved. Mayor Leonhard declared the motion carried 5-0.

Bids, Contracts and Agreements:

Consider Mow Bids for Parks Department – Parks and Recreation Superintendent Brian Bailey presented for approval the bids for the mowing of various parks and other City owned properties. The Parks Department utilizes contractual mowing to assist with the mowing responsibilities. Many of the areas

utilized by the contract are small city owned properties such as intersections and right-of-ways as well as various parks. The previous contractor, Superior Lawn chose not to extend the contract for a second season so a bid package was developed and advertised.

Mr. Kramer:

- The winning bid in 2018 was very low and based on the company not wanting to renew, it was evident even they bid it too low
- The city had based its budget on the previous contract numbers, which would explain the budget difference, but those will be corrected during the next budget cycle
- Contractors handle about 75 acres, while staff covers 175 acres

Commissioner Bauder:

26 cycles is an estimate correct

Mr. Kramer:

26 cycles is the maximum amount of mowing in a season

Commissioner Bauder moved to accept the low bid of Supreme Green Landworks, LLC in an amount not to exceed \$95,810.00 per season for the next three (3) seasons. Commissioner Wilson seconded the motion and the motion was unanimously approved. Mayor Leonhard declared the motion carried 5-0.

Consider Bids for Riverfront Community Center Cooling Tower Replacement — Parks and Recreation Director Steve Grant presented for approval the bids for the replacement of cooling towers at the Riverfront Community Center. Units were installed in 2001, in 2009 some upgrades to piping, speed drives, fan motors and pulley kits were done. There have been substantial rusting on the units thus resulting in the development of a bid.

Commissioner Bauder:

Engineer estimate was pretty high

Mr. Grant:

- Tried to estimate the unknown with inflation costs and with the HVAC Bid from City Hall that came in really high, so it was truly an estimate
- Really benefited from the competitive bid process

Commissioner Wilson moved to accept the bid from Helm Group, Inc., in an amount not to exceed \$128,670.00 for the Riverfront Community Center Cooling Tower Replacement. Commissioner Martin seconded the motion and the motion was unanimously approved. Mayor Leonhard declared the motion carried 5-0.

Consider Bids for Cody Park Stream Improvements City Project 2021-972 — Public Works Director Brian Faust presented for approval the bids for the Cody Park Stream Improvements. During inspection at the park, staff found that a concrete encased sanitary sewer line had been exposed due to erosion of the stream bank. Additional investigation showed the stream bank was eroding fairly close to the shelter house.

Project Manager Michael Stephan:

- The process will stabilize the sewer line and stabilize the creek bank
- Also will address erosion around walking bridge
- Project should be done within 30 days

Commissioner Martin moved to accept the low bid received from Linaweaver Construction in an amount not to exceed \$65,450.00 for the Cody Park Stream Improvements. Commissioner Wilson seconded the motion and the motion was unanimously approved. Mayor Leonhard declared the motion carried 5-0.

First Consideration of General Obligation Bond Ordinance – City Manager Paul Kramer presented for consensus to place on first consideration an ordinance authorizing the issuance of \$1,450,000.00 aggregate principal amount of General Obligation Bonds, Series 2022-A. The Bond and Note sale will be on Tuesday, March 8, 2022 and results will be presented to the Commission with final numbers and request for approval of the ordinance on second consideration.

There was consensus by the Commission to place on first consideration.

Consent Agenda:

Commissioner Martin moved to approve claims for February 5, 2022, through February 18, 2022, in the amount of \$174,699.48; Net amount for Payroll #03 effective February 11, 2022 in the amount of \$329,720.57 (No Police and Fire Pension). Commissioner Wilson seconded the motion and the motion was unanimously approved. Mayor Leonhard declared the motion carried 5-0.

Other:

City Manager Paul Kramer:

- Gave an update on the snow removal efforts due to the most recent snow event
- Advised that the Solid Waste Citizen Task Force Application will be going out this week

Commissioner Hingula:

Disappointed bids were not awarded to local business, but not sure if it is a direct result of inflation

Commission Wilson:

- Wanted to honor and recognize youth in our community
- Gave a shout out to the 2-time national champs the Raiders

Mayor Leonhard:

• Read a brief article about the 1st African American Mayor of Leavenworth, Mr. Benjamin Day

Commissioner Bauder:

- Received questions about buses and why they are not in the area yet
- They are still awaiting chips and are delayed because of it
- Would like an advisory committee regarding the roll-out and goals of the transit system
- Thanked those who appointed her to serve on the KCATA Board

Commissioner Martin:

Advised everyone to stay warm

Adjournment:

Commissioner Wilson moved to adjourn the meeting. Commissioner Bauder seconded the motion and the motion was unanimously approved and the meeting was adjourned.

Time Meeting Adjourned 6:37 p.m. Minutes taken by City Clerk Sarah Bodensteiner, CMC

MAYOR'S APPOINTMENTS

March 8, 2022

Mayor Leonhard

"Move to

Appoint to the **Sidewalk Advisory Board** Dustan Thornton to an unexpired term ending March 15, 2023 and Reappoint Phil Martin, Dave Stokka, Stephen Tennant, and John Carroll to terms ending March 15, 2025;

Appoint to the **Convention & Tourism Committee** Patrice Chisom to an unexpired term ending January 31, 2024;

Appoint to the **Community Development Advisory Board** Tony Majors to an unexpired term ending August 31, 2022"

Requires a second and vote by the Governing Body.

POLICY REPORT

BOND AND NOTES PROCEEDINGS

GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS SERIES 2022-A TEMPORARY NOTES, SERIES A2022

ORDINANCE 8182, RESOLUTION B-2309 AND RESOLUTION B-2310

MARCH 8, 2022

Prepared by:

Sarah Bodensteiner, CMC

City Clerk

Reviewed by:

Paul Kramer City Manager

ISSUE:

The issue before the City Commission is to consider proceedings for the Temporary Notes, Series A2022 and the General Obligation Bonds, Series 2022-A. The bond and note sale will be on Tuesday, March 8, 2022. Resolutions B-2309 and B-2310 and Ordinance 8182 attached are drafts and will be finalized after the bond and note sale on Tuesday, March 8, 2022. The results and final documents will be presented to the City Commission at the meeting on the evening of March 8, 2022.

General Obligation Bonds, Series 2022-A sold and issued in the amount of \$1,450,000

Temporary Notes, Series A2022 sold and issued in the principal amount of \$2,125,000

ACTION REQUIRED:

A. Accept Proposals for the General Obligation Bonds, Series 2022-A ACTION: Motion

B. Second Consideration Ordinance 8182 General Obligation Bonds, Series 2022-A ACTION: Roll Call Vote

C. Adopt Resolution B-2309 Issuance of General Obligation Bonds, Series 2022-A ACTION: Motion

Accept Proposals for Temporary Notes, Series A2022
 ACTION: Motion

E. Adopt Resolution B-2310 Issuance of Temporary Notes, Series A2022 ACTION: Motion

ATTACHMENTS:

- Draft Ordinance No. 8182
- Draft Resolutions B-2309, B-2310

0103223

ORDINANCE NO. 8182

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE OF \$1,450,000 AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS, SERIES 2022-A, OF THE CITY OF LEAVENWORTH, KANSAS, UNDER THE AUTHORITY OF K.S.A. 10-101 TO 125, INCLUSIVE, AND CHARTER ORDINANCE NO. 56 OF THE CITY, ALL AS AMENDED.

WHEREAS, the Governing Body of the City of Leavenworth, Kansas, (the "City") has, in accordance with the powers of home rule of all cities of the State of Kansas under Section 5 of Article 12 of the Constitution of the State of Kansas, passed and approved, by the vote of not less than two-thirds of the members-elect of the governing body of the City, Charter Ordinance No. 56 of the City, which charter ordinance was published once each week for two consecutive weeks in the official newspaper of the City with such charter ordinance taking effect, without protest, on the sixty-first (61st) day following the publication thereof; and

WHEREAS, Charter Ordinance No. 56 both exempted the City from the provisions of K.S.A. 13-1024a, which was applicable to the City but not uniformly applicable to all Kansas cities and therefor was, in accordance with the City's powers of home rule, subject to the City's authority to exempt itself from the whole or any part of said K.S.A. 13-1024a, and, in accordance with such power of home rule, provided substitute and additional provisions on the same subject as in both K.S.A. 13-1024a; and

WHEREAS, the City has, pursuant to Resolution No. B-2276 of the City adopted February 19, 2021, authorized the construction of certain general improvements in the total estimated amount of \$2,038,938 (the "Improvements") to be made in the City under the authority of Charter Ordinance No. 56 of the City; and

WHEREAS, the City has heretofore duly authorized, issued and delivered its \$1,400,000 Temporary Notes, Series A2021, dated May 12, 2021, (the "Series A2021 Notes") pursuant to Resolution No. B-2281 (the "Series A2021 Note Resolution") adopted April 27, 2021, in accordance with the requirements of Charter Ordinance No. 56 of the City to temporarily finance the costs of the Improvements, which Series A2021 Notes maturing on December 1, 2022, in the amount of \$1,400,000 will be redeemed and paid on June 1, 2022, from proceeds of the Bonds authorized herein and other legally available funds of the City; and

WHEREAS, the Series A2021 Notes are subject to redemption and payment prior to maturity, in whole or in part, at any time on or after June 1, 2022, at the option of the City, at the redemption price of 100% of the principal amount thereof plus accrued interest thereon to the date of redemption; and

WHEREAS, all legal requirements pertaining to the Improvements have been complied with and the total cost thereof, including bond issuance costs, is \$1,464,673.45 (the "Project Cost") to be financed with the proceeds of general obligation bonds of the City in the principal amount of \$1,450,000 with the balance of such Project Cost payable from bond premium, if any; and

WHEREAS, in accordance with all of the foregoing, the City deems it necessary and advisable to issue and sell its General Obligation Bonds, Series 2022-A, in the aggregate principal amount of One Million Four Hundred Fifty Thousand Dollars (\$1,450,000) for the purpose of

providing funds to permanently finance the costs of the Improvements, including redeeming and paying the Series A2021 Notes in the principal amount of \$1,400,000 together with accrued interest payable thereon on June 1, 2022, and paying the costs of issuing the Bonds; and

WHEREAS, the City has, in accordance with K.S.A. 10-106, published notice (the "Sale Notice") of the City's intent to sell the Bonds; and

WHEREAS, the City does hereby authorize the issuance and sale of the bonds to the best bidder.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY OF LEAVENWORTH, LEAVENWORTH COUNTY, KANSAS:

Section 1. That for the purpose of providing funds to permanently finance the costs of the Improvements, including redeeming and paying the Series A2021 Notes in the principal amount of \$1,400,000 together with accrued interest payable thereon on June 1, 2022, and paying the costs of issuing the Bonds, there is hereby authorized and directed to be issued General Obligation Bonds, Series 2022-A, of the City in the aggregate principal amount of One Million Four Hundred Fifty Thousand Dollars (\$1,450,000) (the "Bonds") as provided by Charter Ordinance No. 56 of the City and Article 1 of Chapter 10, Kansas Statutes Annotated, all as amended. The Bonds shall be dated and bear interest, shall mature and be payable at such times, shall be in such form, shall be subject to redemption and payment prior to the maturity thereof and shall be issued in the manner prescribed and subject to the provisions, covenants and agreements set forth in a resolution of the Governing Body of the City adopted the same date as the date of the passage and approval of this Ordinance (the "Resolution").

Section 2. That the Mayor and City Clerk are hereby authorized to prepare and execute the Bonds and when so executed, the Bonds shall be registered as required by law and the Governing Body shall annually make provisions for the payment of the principal of, redemption premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds as the same shall become due by levying a tax upon all the taxable property of the City.

Section 3. That the City shall, and the officers, agents and employees of the City are hereby authorized and directed to, take such action and execute such other documents, certificates and instruments as may be necessary or desirable to carry out and comply with the provisions of this Ordinance and to carry out, comply with and perform the duties of the City with respect to the Bonds and the Resolution all as necessary to carry out and give effect to the transaction contemplated hereby and thereby.

Section 4. That if any portion or provision of this Ordinance or the Bonds shall for any reason be held to be invalid or unenforceable, the invalidity or unenforceability of such portion or provisions shall not affect any of the remaining provisions of this Ordinance or the Bonds but this Ordinance and said Bonds shall be construed and enforced as if such illegal or invalid provision had not been contained herein.

Section 5. That the Bonds shall be issued and sold to the purchaser thereof in accordance with both their bid for the purchase thereof and the terms and conditions of this Ordinance.

Section 6. That this Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after its passage and publication in the official City newspaper.

Passed by the Governing Body and approved by the Mayor this 8th day of March, 2022. CITY OF LEAVENWORTH, KANSAS

ATTEST:	Camalla M. Leonhard, Mayor	
Sarah Bodensteiner, City Clerk		
(SEAL)		

RESOLUTION

OF

CITY OF LEAVENWORTH, KANSAS

PASSED

MARCH 8, 2022

\$1,450,000 GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS SERIES 2022-A

RESOLUTION

TABLE OF CONTENTS

ARTICLE I

DEFINITIONS

Section 101.	Definitions of Words and Terms	Page 1
	ARTICLE II	
	AUTHORIZATION AND DETAILS OF THE BONDS	
Section 202. Section 203. Section 204. Section 205. Section 206. Section 207. Section 208. Section 209. Section 210.	Authorization of the Bonds Description of the Bonds Designation of Paying Agent and Bond Registrar Method and Place of Payment of the Bonds Registration, Transfer and Exchange of Bonds Execution, Registration, Authentication and Delivery of Bonds Mutilated, Lost, Stolen or Destroyed Bonds Cancellation and Destruction of Bonds upon Payment Preliminary and Final Official Statement Sale of the Bonds Book-Entry Bonds; Securities Depository	6 6 7 7 8 9 9 10 10 10
	ARTICLE III	
	REDEMPTION OF BONDS	
Section 302.	Optional Redemption by the City	11 12 13
	ARTICLE IV	
	SECURITY FOR AND PAYMENT OF BONDS	
Section 401. Section 402.	Security for the Bonds	14 14
	ARTICLE V	
	ESTABLISHMENT OF FUNDS AND ACCOUNTS	
	DEPOSIT AND APPLICATION OF MONEYS	
Section 502. Section 503. Section 504.	Establishment of Funds and Account	15 15 15 15 15

Section 506. Section 507.	Deposits and Investment of Moneys Nonpresentment of Bonds	16 16
	ARTICLE VI	
	DEFAULT AND REMEDIES	
Section 601. Section 602. Section 603.	Remedies	16 17 17
	ARTICLE VII	
	DEFEASANCE	
Section 701.	Defeasance	17
	ARTICLE VIII	
	TAX COVENANTS	
Section 802.	General Covenants	18 18 18
	ARTICLE IX	
	CONTINUING DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS	
	Disclosure Requirements Failure to Comply with Continuing Disclosure Requirements	19 19
	ARTICLE X	
	MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS	
Section 1002 Section 1003 Section 1004 Section 1005 Section 1006	Annual Audit Amendments Notices, Consents and Other Instruments by Owners Further Authority Severability Governing Law Effective Date Passage Signatures and Seal Exhibit A: Form of Bond	19 19 20 21 21 21 21 22 22
	Exhibit B: Letter of Representations	

RESOLUTION NO. B-2309

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE AND DELIVERY OF \$1,450,000 PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS, SERIES 2022-A, OF THE CITY OF LEAVENWORTH, KANSAS, FOR THE PURPOSE OF PROVIDING FUNDS TO PERMANENTLY FINANCE CERTAIN GENERAL IMPROVEMENTS TOGETHER WITH ALL THINGS NECESSARY AND INCIDENTAL THERETO; AND PRESCRIBING THE FORM AND DETAILS OF SAID BONDS, ALL PURSUANT TO CHARTER ORDINANCE NO. 56 OF THE CITY, AND ARTICLE 1 OF CHAPTER 10 OF THE KANSAS STATUTES ANNOTATED, ALL AS AMENDED.

WHEREAS, the Governing Body of the City of Leavenworth, Kansas, (the "City") has by its Ordinance No. 8182 passed and approved March 8, 2022, (the "Ordinance") authorized the issuance of its General Obligation Bonds, Series 2022-A, in the aggregate principal amount of \$1,450,000 (the "Bonds") under the authority of Charter Ordinance No. 56 of the City, and Article 1 of Chapter 10, Kansas Statutes Annotated, all as amended, for the purpose of providing funds to permanently finance the costs of constructing the City's 2021 general improvements, including redeeming and paying the Series A2021 Notes in the principal amount of \$1,400,000 together with accrued interest payable thereon on June 1, 2022, and paying the cost of issuing the Bonds; and

WHEREAS, in accordance with the City's notice of the sale of the Bonds published in accordance with the requirements of law the Bonds have been sold to and purchased by , , , and

WHEREAS, in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Ordinance, the City hereby intends to both prescribe the form and details of the Bonds and authorize certain other documents and actions in connection with the issuance of the Bonds.

ARTICLE I

DEFINITIONS

Section 101. Definitions of Words and Terms. In addition to words and terms identified elsewhere herein, the following words and terms as used in this Resolution shall have the following meanings:

"Act" means collectively K.S.A. 10-101 to 10-125, inclusive, and Charter Ordinance No. 56 of the City, all as amended.

"Bond and Interest Fund" means the Bond and Interest Fund of the City for its general obligation bonds.

"Bond Counsel" means the firm of Nichols and Wolfe Chartered, or any other attorney or firm of attorneys with a nationally recognized standing in the field of municipal bond financing as selected by the City.

"Bond Payment Date" means any date on which principal of or interest on any Bond is payable.

"Bond Register" means the books for the registration, transfer and exchange of Bonds kept at the office of the Bond Registrar.

- "Bond Registrar" means the Treasurer of the State of Kansas, Topeka, Kansas, and its successors and assigns.
- "Bonds" means the General Obligation Bonds, Series 2022-A, authorized and issued by the City pursuant to the Ordinance.
- "Business Day" means a day other than a Saturday, Sunday or holiday on which the Paying Agent is scheduled in the normal course of its operations to be open to the public for conduct of its operations.
- "Cede & Co." means Cede & Co., as nominee name of The Depository Trust Company, New York, New York.
 - "City" means the City of Leavenworth, Kansas, the issuer of the Bonds.
- "Clerk" means the duly appointed and/or elected Clerk of the City or, in the Clerk's absence, the duly appointed Deputy Clerk or Acting Clerk of the City.
 - "Code" means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.
- "Costs of Issuance" means all costs of issuing the Bonds, including all publication, printing, signing and mailing expenses in connection therewith, registration fees, financial advisory fees, all legal fees and expenses of Bond Counsel and other legal counsel, expenses incurred in connection with compliance with the Code and with the Disclosure Certificate, all expenses, if any, incurred in connection with receiving ratings on the Bonds.
 - "Dated Date" means March 30, 2022.
- "Defaulted Interest" means interest on any Bond which is payable but not paid on any Interest Payment Date.
 - "Defeasance Obligations" means any of the following obligations:
- (a) United States Government Obligations that are not subject to redemption in advance of their maturity dates; or
- (b) obligations of any state or political subdivision of any state, the interest on which is excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes and which meet the following conditions:
- (1) the obligations are (i) not subject to redemption prior to maturity or (ii) the trustee for such obligations has been given irrevocable instructions concerning their calling and redemption and the City of such obligations has covenanted not to redeem such obligations other than as set forth in such instructions;
- (2) the obligations are secured by cash or United States Government Obligations that may be applied only to principal of, premium, if any, and interest payments on such obligations;
- (3) such cash and the principal of and interest on such United States Government Obligations (plus any cash in the escrow fund) are sufficient to meet the liabilities of the obligations;

- (4) such cash and United States Government Obligations serving as security for the obligations are held in an escrow fund by an escrow agent or a trustee irrevocably in trust; and
- (5) such cash and United States Government Obligations are not available to satisfy any other claims, including those against the trustee or escrow agent.
- "Disclosure Certificate" means the Continuing Disclosure Certificate attached to the City's Final Certificate as Exhibit D and included in the transcript of proceedings pertaining to the issuance of the Bonds.
- "EMMA" means the Electronic Municipal Market Access (EMMA) System, the web-based platform of the Municipal Securities rulemaking Board.
 - "Event of Default" means each of the following occurrences or events:
- (a) Payment of the principal or the Redemption Price of any of the Bonds shall not be made when the same shall become due and payable, either at Stated Maturity or by proceedings for redemption or otherwise; or
- (b) Payment of any installment of interest on any of the Bonds shall not be made when the same shall become due; or
- (c) The City shall default in the due and punctual performance of any other of the covenants, conditions, agreements and provisions contained in the Bonds or in this Resolution on the part of the City to be performed (other than relating to Rule 15c2-12 as defined in the Disclosure Certificate), and such default shall continue for thirty (30) days after written notice specifying such default and requiring same to be remedied shall have been given to the City by the Owner of any of the Bonds then Outstanding.
- "Federal Tax Certificate" means the certificate so named and included in the transcript of proceedings pertaining to the issuance of the Bonds describing the investment and use of the proceeds of the Bonds.
 - "Fiscal Year" means the twelve month period ending on December 31.
- "Funds and Accounts" means funds and accounts created or referred to in Section 501 hereof.
- "Improvements" mean construction of certain general improvements in accordance with the legal authority as described in the recitals to this Resolution.
- "Interest Payment Date(s)" means the Stated Maturity of an installment of interest on any Bond which shall be March 1 and September 1 of each year, commencing March 1, 2023.
- "Maturity" when used with respect to any Bond means the date on which the principal of such Bond becomes due and payable as therein and herein provided, whether at the Stated Maturity thereof or call for redemption or otherwise.
- "Mayor" means the duly appointed and/or elected Mayor of the City or, in the Mayor's absence, the duly appointed Deputy Mayor or Acting Mayor of the City.
- "Ordinance" means Ordinance No. 8182 passed and approved March 8, 2022, and published as required by law, pursuant to which the issuance of the Bonds has been authorized.

- "Outstanding" means, when used with reference to the Bonds, as of a particular date of determination, all Bonds theretofore authenticated and delivered, except the following Bonds:
- (a) Bonds theretofore canceled by the Paying Agent or delivered to the Paying Agent for cancellation;
- (b) Bonds deemed to be paid in accordance with the provisions of Section 701 hereof; and
- (c) Bonds in exchange for or in lieu of which other Bonds have been authenticated and delivered hereunder.
- "Owner" when used with respect to any Bond means the Person in whose name such Bond is registered on the Bond Register.
- "Participants" means those financial institutions for whom the Securities Depository effects book-entry transfers and pledges of securities deposited with the Securities Depository, as such listing of Participants exists at the time of such reference.
 - "Paying Agent" means the State Treasurer, and any successors and assigns.
- "Permitted Investments" means: (a) investments authorized by K.S.A. 12-1675 and amendments thereto; (b) the municipal investment pool established pursuant to K.S.A. 12-1677a, and amendments thereto; (c) direct obligations of the United States Government or any agency thereof; (d) the City's temporary notes issued pursuant to K.S.A. 10-123 and amendments thereto; (e) interest-bearing time deposits in commercial banks located in the county or counties in which the City is located; (f) obligations of the federal national mortgage association, federal home loan banks or the federal home loan mortgage corporation; (g) repurchase agreements for securities described in (c) or (f); (h) investment agreements with or other obligations of a financial institution the obligations of which at the time of investment are rated in either of the three highest rating categories by Moody's, Inc. or Standard & Poor's; (i) investments in shares or units of a money market fund or trust the portfolio of which is comprised entirely of securities described in (c) or (f); (i) receipts evidencing ownership interests in securities or portions thereof described in (c) or (f); (k) municipal bonds or other obligations issued by any municipality of the State as defined in K.S.A. 10-1101 which are general obligations of the municipality issuing the same; or (1) bonds of any municipality of the States as defined in K.S.A. 10-1101 which have been refunded in advance of their maturity and are fully secured as to payment of principal and interest thereon by deposit in trust, under escrow agreement with a bank, of securities described in (c) or (f). No Permitted Investment shall include any derivative investment instrument whose market price is derived from the fluctuating value of an underlying asset, index, currency, futures contract, including futures, options and collateralized mortgage obligations.
- "Person" means any natural person, corporation, partnership, joint venture, association, firm, joint-stock company, trust, unincorporated organization, or government or any agency or political subdivision thereof or other public body.
- "Principal and Interest Account" means the Principal and Interest Account for the City of Leavenworth, Kansas, General Obligation Bonds, Series 2022-A, created herein within the City's Bond and Interest Fund.
 - "Project Account" means the Project Account in the treasury of the City, created herein.

- "Purchase Price" means the par value of the Bonds plus accrued interest to the date of delivery.
- "Purchaser" means _____, ____, the original purchaser of the Bonds.
- "Record Dates" for the interest payable on any Interest Payment Date means the fifteenth day (whether or not a Business Day) of each month preceding such Interest Payment Date.
- "Redemption Date" when used with respect to any Bond to be redeemed means the date fixed for the redemption of such Bond pursuant to the terms of this Resolution.
- "Redemption Price" when used with respect to any Bond to be redeemed means the price at which such Bond is to be redeemed pursuant to the terms of this Resolution, including the applicable redemption premium, if any, but excluding installments of interest whose Stated Maturity is on or before the Redemption Date.
- "Replacement Bonds" means Bonds issued to the beneficial owners of the Bonds in accordance with Section 211 hereof.
- "Representation Letter" means the Blanket Issuer Letter of Representations from the City to the Securities Depository with respect to the Bonds, substantially in the form attached to this Resolution as Exhibit B.
 - "Resolution" means this resolution relating to the Bonds.
- "Securities Depository" means, initially, The Depository Trust Company, New York, New York, and its successors and assigns.
- "Special Record Date" means the date fixed by the Paying Agent pursuant to Section 204 hereof for the payment of Defaulted Interest.
- "Series A2021 Note Resolution" means Resolution No. B-2281 of the City adopted on April 27, 2021, authorizing the issuance of the Series A2021 Notes.
- "Series A2021 Notes" means the City's Temporary Notes, Series A2021, dated May 12, 2021, maturing on December 1, 2022, in the principal amount of \$1,400,000, all being paid and redeemed on June 1, 2022, from proceeds of the Bonds.
 - "State" means the State of Kansas.
- "State Treasurer" means the duly elected Treasurer or, in the Treasurer's absence, the duly appointed Deputy Treasurer or acting Treasurer of the State of Kansas.
- "Stated Maturity" when used with respect to any Bond or any installment of interest thereon means the date specified in such Bond and this Resolution as the fixed date on which the principal of such Bond or such installment of interest is due and payable.
 - ["Term Bonds" means the Bonds scheduled to mature in the year 20__.]
- "Treasurer" means the duly appointed and/or elected Treasurer of the City or, in the Treasurer's absence, the duly appointed Deputy Treasurer or acting Treasurer of the City.

"United States Government Obligations" means bonds, notes, certificates of indebtedness, treasury bills or other securities consisting of direct obligations of, or obligations the principal of and interest on which are fully and unconditionally guaranteed as to full and timely payment by, the United States of America, including evidences of a direct ownership interest in the future interest or principal payment on obligations issued by the United States of America (including the interest component of obligations of the Resolution Funding Corporation).

ARTICLE II

AUTHORIZATION AND DETAILS OF THE BONDS

Section 201. Authorization of the Bonds. There shall be issued and hereby are authorized and directed to be issued the General Obligation Bonds, Series 2022-A, of the City in the aggregate principal amount of \$1,450,000 for the purpose of providing funds to permanently finance the costs of constructing the City's 2021 general improvements, including redeeming and paying the Series A2021 Notes in the principal amount of \$1,400,000 together with accrued interest payable thereon on June 1, 2022, and paying the cost of issuing the Bonds.

Section 202. Description of the Bonds. The Bonds shall consist of fully registered bonds in the denominations of \$5,000 or any integral multiple thereof and shall be numbered in such manner as the Bond Registrar shall determine. All of the Bonds shall be dated March 30, 2022, shall become due in the amounts on the Stated Maturities (subject to redemption and payment prior to their Stated Maturities as provided in Article III hereof), and shall bear interest at the rates per annum as follows:

SERIAL BONDS

MATURITY (SEPTEMBER 1)	PRINCIPAL AMOUNT	INTEREST RATE
2023	\$125,000	 %
2024	140,000	
2025	140,000	
2026	140,000	
2027	145,000	
2028	145,000	
2029	150,000	
2030	150,000	
2031	155,000	
2032	160,000	-

The Bonds shall bear interest at the above specified rates (computed on the basis of a 360-day year of twelve 30-day months) from the later of the Dated Date or the most recent Interest Payment Date to which interest has been paid, payable on the Interest Payment Dates in the manner set forth in **Section 204** hereof.

Each of the Bonds, as originally issued or issued upon transfer, exchange or substitution, shall be typed or printed in accordance with the format required by the Attorney General of the State and shall be substantially in the form attached hereto as Exhibit A or as may be required by the Attorney General pursuant to the Notice of Systems of Registration for Kansas Municipal Bonds, 2 Kan. Reg. 921 (1983), in accordance with the Kansas Bond Registration Law, K.S.A. 10-620 et seq.

Section 203. Designation of Paying Agent and Bond Registrar. The State Treasurer, Topeka, Kansas, is hereby designated as the Paying Agent for the payment of the principal of and interest on the Bonds and Bond Registrar with respect to the registration, transfer and exchange of Bonds. The Mayor and Clerk of the City are hereby authorized and empowered to execute on behalf of the City an agreement with the Bond Registrar and Paying Agent for the Bonds.

The City will at all times maintain a Paying Agent and Bond Registrar meeting the qualifications herein described for the performance of the duties hereunder. The City reserves the right to appoint a successor Paying Agent or Bond Registrar by (1) filing with the Paying Agent or Bond Registrar then performing such function a certified copy of the proceedings giving notice of the termination of such Paying Agent or Bond Registrar and appointing a successor, and (2) causing notice of appointment of the successor Paying Agent and Bond Registrar to be given by first class mail to each Owner. No resignation or removal of the Paying Agent or Bond Registrar shall become effective until a successor has been appointed and has accepted the duties of Paying Agent or Bond Registrar.

Every Paying Agent or Bond Registrar appointed hereunder shall at all times meet the requirements of K.S.A. 10-501 et seq. and K.S.A. 10-620 et seq., respectively.

Section 204. Method and Place of Payment of the Bonds. The principal or Redemption Price of and interest on the Bonds shall be payable in any coin or currency which, on the respective dates of payment thereof, is legal tender for the payment of public and private debts.

The principal or Redemption Price of each Bond shall be paid at Maturity to the Person in whose name such Bond is registered on the Bond Register at the Maturity thereof, upon presentation and surrender of such Bond at the principal corporate trust office of the Paying Agent.

The interest payable on each Bond on any Interest Payment Date shall be paid to the Owner of such Bond as shown on the Bond Register at the close of business on the Record Date for such interest (a) by check or draft mailed by the Paying Agent to the address of such Owner shown on the Bond Register or (b) in the case of an interest payment to any Owner of \$500,000 or more in aggregate principal amount of Bonds, by electronic transfer to such Owner upon written notice given to the Bond Registrar by such Owner, not less than 15 days prior to the Record Date for such interest, containing the electronic transfer instructions including the bank (which shall be in the continental United States) ABA routing number and account number to which such Owner wishes to have such transfer directed.

Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions of this Section, any Defaulted Interest with respect to any Bond shall cease to be payable to the Owner of such Bond on the relevant Record Date and shall be payable to the Owner in whose name such Bond is registered at the close of business on the Special Record Date for the payment of such Defaulted Interest, which Special Record Date shall be fixed as hereinafter specified in this paragraph. The City shall notify the Paying Agent in writing of the amount of Defaulted Interest proposed to be paid on each Bond and the date of the proposed payment (which date shall be at least 30 days after receipt of such notice by the Paying Agent) and shall deposit with the Paying Agent at the time of such notice an amount of money equal to the aggregate amount proposed to be paid in respect of such Defaulted Interest or shall make arrangements satisfactory to the Paying Agent for such deposit prior to the date of the proposed payment. Following receipt of such funds the Paying Agent shall fix a Special Record Date for the payment of such Defaulted Interest which shall be not more than 15 nor less than 10 days prior to the date of the proposed payment. The Paying Agent shall promptly notify the City of such Special Record Date and, in the name and at the expense of the City, shall cause notice of the proposed payment of such Defaulted Interest and the Special

Record Date therefore to be mailed, by first class mail, postage prepaid, to each Owner of a Bond entitled to such notice at the address of such Owner as it appears on the Bond Register not less than 10 days prior to such Special Record Date.

The Paying Agent shall keep a record of payment of principal and Redemption Price of and interest on all Bonds and at least annually shall forward a copy or summary of such records to the City.

Section 205. Registration, Transfer and Exchange of Bonds. The City covenants that, as long as any of the Bonds remain Outstanding, it will cause the Bond Register to be kept at the office of the Bond Registrar as herein provided. Each Bond when issued shall be registered in the name of the Owner thereof on the Bond Register.

Bonds may be transferred and exchanged only on the Bond Register as provided in this Section. Upon surrender of any Bond at the principal corporate trust office of the Bond Registrar, the Bond Registrar shall transfer or exchange such Bond for a new Bond or Bonds in any authorized denomination of the same Stated Maturity and in the same aggregate principal amount as the Bond that was presented for transfer or exchange.

Bonds presented for transfer or exchange shall be accompanied by a written instrument or instruments of transfer or authorization for exchange, in a form and with guarantee of signature satisfactory to the Bond Registrar, duly executed by the Owner thereof or by the Owner's duly authorized agent.

In all cases in which the privilege of transferring or exchanging Bonds is exercised, the Bond Registrar shall authenticate and deliver Bonds in accordance with the provisions of this Resolution. The City shall pay the fees and expenses of the Bond Registrar for the registration, transfer and exchange of Bonds provided for by this Resolution and the cost of printing a reasonable supply of registered bond blanks. Any additional costs or fees that might be incurred in the secondary market, other than fees of the Bond Registrar, are the responsibility of the Owners of the Bonds. In the event any Owner fails to provide a correct taxpayer identification number to the Paying Agent, the Paying Agent may make a charge against such Owner sufficient to pay any governmental charge required to be paid as a result of such failure. In compliance with Section 3406 of the Code, such amount may be deducted by the Paying Agent from amounts otherwise payable to such Owner hereunder or under the Bonds.

The City and the Bond Registrar shall not be required (a) to register the transfer or exchange of any Bond that has been called for redemption after notice of such redemption has been mailed by the Paying Agent pursuant to **Section 303** hereof and during the period of 15 days next preceding the date of mailing of such notice of redemption; or (b) to register the transfer or exchange of any Bond during a period beginning at the opening of business on the day after receiving written notice from the City of its intent to pay Defaulted Interest and ending at the close of business on the date fixed for the payment of Defaulted Interest pursuant to **Section 204** hereof.

The City and the Paying Agent may deem and treat the Person in whose name any Bond is registered on the Bond Register as the absolute Owner of such Bond, whether such Bond is overdue or not, for the purpose of receiving payment of, or on account of, the principal or Redemption Price of and interest on said Bond and for all other purposes. All payments so made to any such Owner or upon the Owner's order shall be valid and effective to satisfy and discharge the liability upon such Bond to the extent of the sum or sums so paid, and neither the City nor the Paying Agent shall be affected by any notice to the contrary.

At reasonable times and under reasonable regulations established by the Bond Registrar, the Bond Register may be inspected and copied by the Owners of 10% or more in principal amount of the Bonds then Outstanding or any designated representative of such Owners whose authority is evidenced to the satisfaction of the Bond Registrar.

Section 206. Execution, Registration, Authentication and Delivery of Bonds. Each of the Bonds, including any Bonds issued in exchange or as substitutions for the Bonds initially delivered, shall be executed for and on behalf of the City by the manual or facsimile signature of the Mayor, attested by the manual or facsimile signature of the Clerk and the seal of the City shall be affixed thereto or imprinted thereon. The Mayor and Clerk are hereby authorized and directed to prepare and execute the Bonds in the manner herein specified, and to cause the Bonds to be registered in the office of the Clerk, which registration shall be evidenced by the manual or facsimile signature of the Clerk with the seal of the City affixed thereto or imprinted thereon. The Bonds shall also be registered in the office of the State Treasurer, which registration shall be evidenced by the manual or facsimile signature of the State Treasurer with the seal of the State Treasurer affixed thereto or imprinted thereon. In case any officer whose signature appears on any Bonds ceases to be such officer before the delivery of such Bonds, such signature shall nevertheless be valid and sufficient for all purposes, as if such person had remained in office until delivery. Any Bond may be signed by such persons who at the actual time of the execution of such Bond are the proper officers to sign such Bond although at the date of such Bond such persons may not have been such officers.

The Bonds shall have endorsed thereon a certificate of authentication substantially in the form attached hereto as Exhibit A hereof, which shall be manually executed by an authorized officer or employee of the Bond Registrar, but it shall not be necessary that the same officer or employee sign the certificate of authentication on all of the Bonds that may be issued hereunder at any one time. No Bond shall be entitled to any security or benefit under this Resolution or be valid or obligatory for any purpose unless and until such certificate of authentication has been duly executed by the Bond Registrar. Such executed certificate of authentication upon any Bond shall be conclusive evidence that such Bond has been duly authenticated and delivered under this Resolution. Upon authentication, the Bond Registrar shall deliver the Bonds to the Purchaser upon instructions of the City or its representative.

Section 207. Mutilated, Lost, Stolen or Destroyed Bonds. If (a) any mutilated Bond is surrendered to the Bond Registrar or the Bond Registrar receives evidence to its satisfaction of the destruction, loss or theft of any Bond, and (b) there is delivered to the City and the Bond Registrar such security or indemnity as may be required by each of them, then, in the absence of notice to the City or the Bond Registrar that such Bond has been acquired by a bona fide purchaser, the City shall execute and, upon the City's request, the Bond Registrar shall authenticate and deliver, in exchange for or in lieu of any such mutilated, destroyed, lost or stolen Bond, a new Bond of the same Stated Maturity and of like tenor and principal amount.

If any such mutilated, destroyed, lost or stolen Bond has become or is about to become due and payable, the City, in its discretion, may pay such Bond instead of issuing a new Bond.

Upon the issuance of any new Bond under this Section, the City may require the payment by the Owner of a sum sufficient to cover any tax or other governmental charge that may be imposed in relation thereto and any other expenses (including the fees and expenses of the Paying Agent) connected therewith.

Every new Bond issued pursuant to this Section shall constitute a replacement of the prior obligation of the City, and shall be entitled to all the benefits of this Resolution equally and ratably with all other Outstanding Bonds.

Section 208. Cancellation and Destruction of Bonds Upon Payment. All Bonds that have been paid or redeemed or that otherwise have been surrendered to the Paying Agent, either at or before Maturity, shall be cancelled by the Paying Agent immediately upon the payment, redemption and surrender thereof to the Paying Agent and subsequently destroyed in accordance with the customary practices of the Paying Agent. The Paying Agent shall execute a certificate in duplicate describing the Bonds so cancelled and destroyed and shall file an executed counterpart of such certificate with the City.

Section 209. Preliminary and Final Official Statement. The Preliminary Official Statement dated February 23, 2022, is hereby ratified and approved. For the purpose of enabling the Purchaser to comply with the requirements of Rule 15c2-12(b)(1) of the Securities and Exchange Commission, the City hereby deems the information regarding the City contained in the Preliminary Official Statement to be "final" as of its date, except for the omission of such information as is permitted by Rule 15c2-12(b)(1), and the appropriate officers of the City are hereby authorized, if requested, to provide the Purchaser a letter or certification to such effect and to take such other actions or execute such other documents as such officers in their reasonable judgment deem necessary to enable the Purchaser to comply with the requirement of such Rule.

The final Official Statement is hereby authorized to be prepared by supplementing, amending and completing the Preliminary Official Statement, with such changes and additions thereto as are necessary to conform to and describe the transaction. The Mayor is hereby authorized to execute the final Official Statement as so supplemented, amended and completed, and the use and public distribution of the final Official Statement by the Purchaser in connection with the reoffering of the Bonds is hereby authorized. The proper officials of the City are hereby authorized to execute and deliver a certificate pertaining to such Official Statement as prescribed therein, dated as of the date of payment for and delivery of the Bonds.

The City agrees to provide to the Purchaser within seven business days of the date of the sale of Bonds sufficient copies of the final Official Statement to enable the Purchaser to comply with the requirements of Rule 15c2-12(b)(4) of the Securities and Exchange Commission and with the requirements of Rule G-32 of the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board.

Section 210. Sale of the Bonds. The sale of the Bonds to the Purchaser is hereby ratified and confirmed. Delivery of the Bonds shall be made to the Purchaser as soon as practicable after the passage of this Resolution, upon payment of the Purchase Price.

Section 211. Book-Entry Bonds; Securities Depository.

- (a) The Bonds shall initially be registered to Cede & Co., the nominee for the Securities Depository, and no beneficial owner will receive certificates representing their respective interests in the Bonds, except in the event the Bond Registrar issues Replacement Bonds as provided in subsection (b) hereof. It is anticipated that during the term of the Bonds, the Securities Depository will make book-entry transfers among its Participants and receive and transmit payment of principal of, premium, if any, and interest on, the Bonds to the Participants until and unless the Bond Registrar authenticates and delivers Replacement Bonds to the beneficial owners as described in subsection (b).
- (b) (1) If the City determines (A) that the Securities Depository is unable to properly discharge its responsibilities, or (B) that the Securities Depository is no longer qualified to act as a securities depository and registered clearing agency under the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, or (C) that the continuation of a book-entry system to the exclusion of any Bonds being issued to any Owner other than Cede & Co. is no longer in the best interests of the beneficial owners of the Bonds, or (2) if the Bond Registrar receives written notice from

Participants having interests in not less than 50% of the Bonds Outstanding, as shown on the records of the Securities Depository (and certified to such effect by the Securities Depository), that the continuation of a book-entry system to the exclusion of any Bonds being issued to any Owner other than Cede & Co. is no longer in the best interests of the beneficial owners of the Bonds, then the Bond Registrar shall notify the Owners of such determination or such notice and of the availability of certificates to Owners requesting the same, and the Bond Registrar shall register in the name and authenticate and deliver Replacement Bonds to the beneficial owners or their nominees in principal amounts representing the interest of each, making such adjustments as it may find necessary or appropriate as to accrued interest and previous calls for redemption; provided, that in the case of a determination under (1)(A) or (1)(B) of this subsection (b), the City, with the consent of the Bond Registrar, may select a successor securities depository in accordance with Section 211(c) hereof to effect book-entry transfers. In such event, all references to the Securities Depository herein shall relate to the period of time when the Securities Depository has possession of at least one Bond. Upon the issuance of Replacement Bonds, all references herein to obligations imposed upon or to be performed by the Securities Depository shall be deemed to be imposed upon and performed by the Bond Registrar, to the extent applicable with respect to such Replacement Bonds. If the Securities Depository resigns and the City, the Bond Registrar or Owners are unable to locate a qualified successor of the Securities Depository in accordance with Section 211(c) hereof, then the Bond Registrar shall authenticate and cause delivery of Replacement Bonds to Owners, as provided herein. The Bond Registrar may rely on information from the Securities Depository and its Participants as to the names of the beneficial owners of the Bonds. The cost of printing, registration, authentication and delivery of Replacement Bonds shall be paid for by the City.

- (c) In the event the Securities Depository resigns, is unable to properly discharge its responsibilities, or is no longer qualified to act as a securities depository and registered clearing agency under the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, the City may appoint a successor Securities Depository provided the Bond Registrar and the City receive written evidence with respect to the ability of the successor Securities Depository to discharge its responsibilities. Any such successor Securities Depository shall be a securities depository which is a registered clearing agency under the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, or other applicable statute or regulation that operates a securities depository upon reasonable and customary terms. The Bond Registrar upon its receipt of a Bond or Bonds for cancellation shall cause the delivery of Bonds to the successor Securities Depository in appropriate denominations and form as provided herein.
- (d) The execution and delivery of the Representation Letter to DTC by the Mayor of the City in the form attached hereto as Exhibit B with such changes, omissions, insertions and revisions as the Mayor shall deem advisable, is hereby authorized, and execution of the Representation Letter by the Mayor shall be conclusive evidence of such approval. The Representation Letter shall set forth certain matters with respect to, among other things, notices, consents and approvals by Registered Owners of the Bonds and beneficial Owners and payments on the Bonds. The Paying Agent shall have the same rights with respect to its actions thereunder as it has with respect to its actions under this Resolution.

ARTICLE III

REDEMPTION OF BONDS

Section 301. Optional Redemption by City.

(a) Optional Redemption. At the option of the City, the Bonds or portions thereof [either maturing or subject to mandatory redemption and payment] maturing on September 1, 2031, and

thereafter may be called for redemption and payment prior to their Stated Maturity on September 1, 2030, and thereafter as a whole or in part at any time (selection of maturities and the amount of Bonds of each maturity to be redeemed to be determined by the City), at the Redemption Price of 100% (expressed as a percentage of the principal amount), plus accrued interest thereon to the Redemption Date.

[(b) Mandatory Redemption. The Term Bonds shall be subject to mandatory redemption and payment prior to Stated Maturity pursuant to the mandatory redemption requirements of this Section at a Redemption Price equal to 100% of the principal amount thereof plus accrued interest to the Redemption Date. The taxes levied in Article IV hereof which are to be deposited into the Principal and Interest Account shall be sufficient to redeem, and the City shall redeem on September 1 in the years, the principal amounts of such Term Bonds as follows:

Princip <u>Amoun</u>			
\$			
(leaving \$	to mature September	, 20)

At its option, to be exercised on or before the 45th day next preceding any mandatory Redemption Date, the City may: (1) deliver to the Paying Agent for cancellation Term Bonds subject to mandatory redemption on said mandatory Redemption Date, in any aggregate principal amount desired; or (2) furnish the Paying Agent funds, together with appropriate instructions, for the purpose of purchasing any Term Bonds subject to mandatory redemption on said mandatory Redemption Date from any Owner thereof whereupon the Paying Agent shall expend such funds for such purpose to such extent as may be practical; or (3) receive a credit with respect to the mandatory redemption obligation of the City under this Section for any Term Bonds subject to mandatory redemption on said mandatory Redemption Date which, prior to such date, have been redeemed (other than through the operation of the mandatory redemption requirements of this subsection (b)) and cancelled by the Paying Agent and not theretofore applied as a credit against any redemption obligation under this subsection (b). Each Term Bond so delivered or previously purchased or redeemed shall be credited at 100% of the principal amount thereof on the obligation of the City to redeem Term Bonds of the same Stated Maturity on such mandatory Redemption Date, and any excess of such amount shall be credited on future mandatory redemption obligations for Term Bonds of the same Stated Maturity in chronological order, and the principal amount of Term Bonds to be redeemed by operation of the requirements of this Section shall be accordingly reduced. If the City intends to exercise any option granted by the provisions of clauses (1), (2) or (3) above, the City will, on or before the 45th day next preceding each mandatory Redemption Date, furnish the Paying Agent a written certificate indicating to what extent the provisions of said clauses (1), (2) and (3) are to be complied with, with respect to such mandatory redemption payment.]

Section 302. Selection of Bonds to be Redeemed. Bonds shall be redeemed only in the principal amount of \$5,000 or any integral multiple thereof. When less than all of the Bonds of the same maturity are to be redeemed and paid prior to their Stated Maturity, the Bonds to be redeemed shall be selected by the Bond Registrar in \$5,000 units of principal amount in such equitable manner as the Bond Registrar may determine.

In the case of a partial redemption of Bonds by lot when Bonds of denominations greater than \$5,000 are then Outstanding, then for all purposes in connection with such redemption each \$5,000 of face value shall be treated as though it were a separate Bond of the denomination of \$5,000. If it is determined that one or more, but not all, of the \$5,000 units of face value

represented by any Bond is selected for redemption, then upon notice of intention to redeem such \$5,000 unit or units, the Owner or the Owner's duly authorized agent shall forthwith present and surrender such Bond to the Bond Registrar: (1) for payment of the Redemption Price and interest to the Redemption Date of such \$5,000 unit or units of face value called for redemption, and (2) for exchange, without charge to the Owner thereof, for a new Bond or Bonds of the aggregate principal amount of the unredeemed portion of the principal amount of such Bond. If the Owner of any such Bond fails to present such Bond to the Paying Agent for payment and exchange as aforesaid, such Bond shall, nevertheless, become due and payable on the redemption date to the extent the \$5,000 unit or units of face value called for redemption (and to that extent only).

Section 303. Notice and Effect of Call for Redemption. In the event the City desires to call the Bonds for optional redemption prior to maturity, written notice of such intent shall be provided to the Bond Registrar in accordance with K.S.A. 10-129, as amended, not less than 45 days prior to the Redemption Date. The Bond Registrar shall call Bonds for redemption and payment and shall give notice of such redemption as herein provided upon receipt by it of the City's written notice. If the Bonds are refunded more than 90 days in advance of such Redemption Date, any escrow agreement entered into by the City in connection with such refunding shall provide that such written instructions to the Paying Agent shall be given by the escrow agent on behalf of the City not more than 90 days prior to the Redemption Date. The Paying Agent may in its discretion waive such notice period so long as the notice requirements set forth in Section 303 are met.

Unless waived by any Owner of Bonds to be redeemed, the Bond Registrar shall give written notice of the redemption of said Bonds on a specified date, the same being described by maturity, said notice to be mailed by United States first class mail addressed to the Owners of said Bonds to be redeemed and to the Original Purchaser of the Bonds, each of said notices to be mailed not less than 30 days prior to the date fixed for redemption. The City and Bond Registrar shall also give such additional notice as may be required by Kansas law or regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission in effect as of the date of such notice.

All official notices of redemption shall be dated and shall contain the following information:

- (a) the Redemption Date;
- (b) the Redemption Price;
- (c) if less than all Outstanding Bonds are to be redeemed, the identification (and, in the case of partial redemption of any Bonds, the respective principal amounts) of the Bonds to be redeemed;
- (d) a statement that on the Redemption Date the Redemption Price will become due and payable upon each such Bond or portion thereof called for redemption and that interest thereon shall cease to accrue from and after the Redemption Date; and
- (e) the place where such Bonds are to be surrendered for payment of the Redemption Price, which shall be the principal office of the Paying Agent.

The failure of any Owner to receive notice given as heretofore provided or an immaterial defect therein shall not invalidate any redemption.

Prior to any Redemption Date, the City shall deposit with the Paying Agent an amount of money sufficient to pay the Redemption Price of all the Bonds or portions of Bonds that are to be redeemed on such Redemption Date.

Official notice of redemption having been given as aforesaid, the Bonds or portions of Bonds to be redeemed shall become due and payable on the Redemption Date, at the Redemption Price therein specified, and from and after the Redemption Date (unless the City defaults in the payment of the Redemption Price) such Bonds or portion of Bonds shall cease to bear interest. Upon surrender of such Bonds for redemption in accordance with such notice, the Redemption Price shall be payable as herein provided for payment of interest. Upon surrender for any partial redemption of any Bond, there shall be prepared for the Owner a new Bond or Bonds of the same Stated Maturity in the amount of the unpaid principal as provided herein. All Bonds that have been surrendered for redemption shall be cancelled and destroyed by the Paying Agent as provided herein and shall not be reissued.

The Paying Agent is also directed to comply with any mandatory or voluntary standards then in effect for processing redemptions of municipal securities established by the State or the Securities Exchange Commission. Failure to comply with such standards shall not affect or invalidate the redemption of any Bond.

ARTICLE IV

SECURITY FOR AND PAYMENT OF BONDS

Section 401. Security for the Bonds. The Bonds shall be general obligations of the City payable as to both principal and interest from ad valorem taxes which may be levied without limitation as to rate or amount upon all the taxable tangible property, real and personal, within the territorial limits of the City. The full faith, credit and resources of the City are hereby irrevocably pledged for the prompt payment of the principal of and interest on the Bonds as the same become due.

Section 402. Levy and Collection of Annual Tax. The governing body of the City shall annually make provision for the payment of principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds as the same become due by levying and collecting the necessary taxes upon all of the taxable tangible property within the City in the manner provided by law.

The taxes referred to above shall be extended upon the tax rolls in each of the several years, respectively, and shall be levied and collected at the same time and in the same manner as the other ad valorem taxes of the City are levied and collected. The proceeds derived from said taxes shall be deposited in the Principal and Interest Account, shall be kept separate and apart from all other funds of the City and shall be used solely for the payment of the principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds as and when the same become due, taking into account the fees and expenses of the Bond Registrar and Paying Agent.

If at any time said taxes are not collected in time to pay the principal of or interest on the Bonds when due, the Treasurer is hereby authorized and directed to pay said principal or interest out of the general funds of the City and to reimburse said general funds for money so expended when said taxes are collected.

ARTICLE V

ESTABLISHMENT OF FUNDS AND ACCOUNTS DEPOSIT AND APPLICATION OF MONEYS

Section 501. Establishment of Funds and Accounts. Simultaneously with the issuance of the Bonds, there shall be created within the treasury of the City the following funds and accounts:

- (a) In the treasury of the City, the "Project Account"; and
- (b) In the City's Bond and Interest Fund, the "Principal and Interest Account for the City of Leavenworth, Kansas, General Obligation Bonds, Series 2022-A (the "Principal and Interest Account").

The Funds and Accounts established herein shall be administered in accordance with the provisions of this Resolution so long as the Bonds are Outstanding.

Section 502. Disposition of Bond Proceeds and Funds of the City. The proceeds of the Bonds, upon issuance and delivery thereof, and other required funds shall be deposited as follows:

- (a) Proceeds of the Bonds in the amount of \$______, upon issuance and delivery thereof, shall be deposited in the Project Account to pay costs of issuance which does not include underwriters discount in the amount of \$______; and
- (b) Proceeds of the Bonds in the amount of \$______, upon issuance and delivery thereof, shall be deposited with the Treasurer of the State of Kansas for the redemption and payment of the Series A2021 Notes on June 1, 2022.
- **Section 503.** Withdrawals from the Project Account. The Treasurer shall make withdrawals from the Project Account solely for the purpose of paying the costs of issuing the bonds. Such withdrawals shall be made only on due authorization by the governing body of the City.
- Section 504. Surplus in the Project Account. All moneys remaining in the Project Account after the payment of the Costs of Issuance, as determined by the governing body of the City, shall be transferred immediately to the Principal and Interest Account and applied to the next installment of principal due on the series of Bond from which surplus moneys remain.

Section 505. Application of Moneys in Principal and Interest Account. All amounts paid and credited to the Principal and Interest Account shall be expended and used by the City for the sole purpose of paying the principal or Redemption Price of and interest on the Bonds as and when the same become due and the usual and customary fees and expenses of the Bond Registrar and Paying Agent. The Treasurer is authorized and directed to withdraw from the Principal and Interest Account sums sufficient to pay both principal or Redemption Price of and interest on the Bonds and the fees and expenses of the Bond Registrar and Paying Agent as and when the same become due, and to forward such sums to the Paying Agent in a manner which ensures that the Paying Agent will receive immediately available funds in such amounts on or before the Business Day immediately preceding the dates when such principal, interest and fees of the Bond Registrar and Paying Agent will become due. If, through the lapse of time or otherwise, the Owners of Bonds are no longer entitled to enforce payment of the Bonds or the interest thereon, the Paying Agent shall return said funds to the City. All moneys deposited with the Paying Agent shall be deemed to be deposited in accordance with and subject to all of the

provisions contained in this Resolution and shall be held in trust by the Paying Agent for the benefit of the Owners of the Bonds and entitled to payment from such moneys.

Any moneys or investments remaining in the Principal and Interest Account after the retirement of the indebtedness for which the Bonds were issued shall be transferred and paid into the Bond and Interest Fund of the City.

Section 506. Deposits and Investment of Moneys. Moneys in each of the Funds and Accounts shall be deposited in accordance with the requirements of K.S.A. 10-131, as amended. All such deposits shall be continuously and adequately secured by the financial institutions holding such deposits as provided by the laws of the State. All moneys held in the Funds and Accounts shall be kept separate and apart from all other funds of the City so that there shall be no commingling of such funds with any other funds of the City.

Moneys held in the funds and accounts herein created or established in conjunction with the issuance of the Bonds may be invested by the City in Permitted Investments or in other investments allowed by Kansas law in such amounts and maturing at such times as shall reasonably provide for moneys to be available when required in said accounts or funds; provided, however, that no such investment shall be made for a period extending longer than to the date when the moneys invested may be needed for the purpose for which such fund or account was created. All interest on any Permitted Investment held in any fund or account shall accrue to and become a part of such fund or account; provided, however, that interest earned on investments of moneys held in the Project Account may, at the direction of the governing body of the City, be paid and credited to the Principal and Interest Account and used to pay interest on the Bonds. In determining the amount held in any fund or account under the provisions of the Resolution, Permitted Investments shall be valued at their par value or at their then redemption value, whichever is lower.

Section 507. Nonpresentment of Bonds. If any Bond is not presented for payment when the principal thereof becomes due at Maturity, if funds sufficient to pay such Bond have been made available to the Paying Agent all liability of the City to the Owner thereof for the payment of such Bond shall forthwith cease, determine and be completely discharged, and thereupon it shall be the duty of the Paying Agent to hold such funds, without liability for interest thereon, for the benefit of the Owner of such Bond, who shall thereafter be restricted exclusively to such funds for any claim of whatever nature on his part under this Resolution or on, or with respect to, said Bond. If such funds shall have remained unclaimed for five (5) years after such principal or interest has become due and payable, such funds shall be paid to the City; and all liability of the Paying Agent to the owner thereof for the payment of such Bond shall forthwith cease, terminate and be completely discharged. The obligations of the Paying Agent under this Section to pay any such funds to the City shall be subject to any provisions of law applicable to the Paying Agent or to such funds providing other requirements for disposition of unclaimed property.

ARTICLE VI

DEFAULT AND REMEDIES

Section 601. Remedies. The provisions of the Resolution, including the covenants and agreements herein contained, shall constitute a contract between the City and the Owners of the Bonds. If an Event of Default occurs and shall be continuing, the Owner or Owners of not less than 10% in principal amount of the Bonds at the time Outstanding shall have the right for the equal benefit and protection of all Owners of Bonds similarly situated:

- (a) by mandamus or other suit, action or proceedings at law or in equity to enforce the rights of such Owner or Owners against the City and its officers, agents and employees, and to require and compel duties and obligations required by the provisions of the Resolution or by the Constitution and laws of the State;
- (b) by suit, action or other proceedings in equity or at law to require the City, its officers, agents and employees to account as if they were the trustees of an express trust; and
- (c) by suit, action or other proceedings in equity or at law to enjoin any acts or things which may be unlawful or in violation of the rights of the Owners of the Bonds.

Section 602. Limitation on Rights of Owners. The covenants and agreements of the City contained herein and in the Bonds shall be for the equal benefit, protection, and security of the Owners of any or all of the Bonds, all of which Bonds shall be equal rank and without preference or priority of one Bond over any other Bond in the application of the funds herein pledged to the payment of the principal of and the interest on the Bonds, or otherwise, except as to rate of interest, date of maturity and right of prior redemption as provided in this Resolution. No one or more Owners secured hereby shall have any right in any manner whatever by his or their action to affect, disturb or prejudice the security granted and provided for herein, or to enforce any right hereunder, except in the manner herein provided, and all proceedings at law or in equity shall be instituted, had and maintained for the equal benefit of all Outstanding Bonds.

Section 603. Remedies Cumulative. No remedy conferred herein upon the Owners is intended to be exclusive of any other remedy, but each such remedy shall be cumulative and in addition to every other remedy and may be exercised without exhausting and without regard to any other remedy conferred herein. No waiver of any default or breach of duty or contract by the Owner of any Bond shall extend to or affect any subsequent default or breach of duty or contract or shall impair any rights or remedies thereon. No delay or omission of any Owner to exercise any right or power accruing upon any default shall impair any such right or power or shall be construed to be a waiver of any such default or acquiescence therein. Every substantive right and every remedy conferred upon the Owners of the Bonds by this Resolution may be enforced and exercised from time to time and as often as may be deemed expedient. If action or proceedings taken by any Owner on account of any default or to enforce any right or exercise any remedy has been discontinued or abandoned for any reason, or shall have been determined adversely to such Owner, then, and in every such case, the City and the Owners of the Bonds shall be restored to their former positions and rights hereunder, respectively, and all rights, remedies, powers and duties of the Owners shall continue as if no such suit, action or other proceedings had been brought or taken.

ARTICLE VII

DEFEASANCE

Section 701. Defeasance. When any or all of the Bonds or scheduled interest payments thereon have been paid and discharged, then the requirements contained in this Resolution and the pledge of the City's faith and credit hereunder and all other rights granted hereby shall terminate with respect to the Bonds or scheduled interest payments thereon so paid and discharged. Bonds or scheduled interest payments thereon shall be deemed to have been paid and discharged within the meaning of this Resolution if there has been deposited with the Paying Agent, or other commercial bank or trust company located in the State and having full trust powers, at or prior to the Stated Maturity or Redemption Date of said Bonds or the interest payments thereon, in trust for and irrevocably appropriated thereto, moneys and/or Defeasance Obligations which, together with the interest to be earned on any such Defeasance Obligations, will be sufficient for the payment of the principal of said Bonds and/or interest accrued to the

Stated Maturity or Redemption Date, or if default in such payment has occurred on such date, then to the date of the tender of such payments; provided, however, that if any such Bonds are to be redeemed prior to their Stated Maturity, (1) the City has elected to redeem such Bonds, and (2) either notice of such redemption has been given, or the City has given irrevocable instructions, or shall have provided for an escrow agent to give irrevocable instructions, to the Bond Registrar to give such notice of redemption in compliance with Section 303 of this Resolution. Any money and Defeasance Obligations that at any time shall be deposited with the Paying Agent or other commercial bank or trust company by or on behalf of the City, for the purpose of paying and discharging any of the Bonds, shall be and are hereby assigned, transferred and set over to the Paying Agent or other bank or trust company in trust for the respective Owners of the Bonds, and such moneys shall be and are hereby irrevocably appropriated to the payment and discharge thereof. All money and Defeasance Obligations deposited with the Paying Agent or such bank or trust company shall be deemed to be deposited in accordance with and subject to all of the provisions of this Resolution.

ARTICLE VIII

TAX COVENANTS

Section 801. General Covenants.

- (a) The City covenants and agrees that (1) it will comply with all applicable provisions of the Code, including Sections 103 and 141 through 150, necessary to maintain the exclusion from gross income for federal income tax purposes of the interest on the Bonds and (2) it will not use or permit the use of any proceeds of Bonds or any other funds of the City, will not take or permit any other action, or fail to take any action, if any such action or failure to take action would adversely affect the exclusion from gross income of the interest on the Bonds. The City will, in addition, adopt such other ordinances or resolutions and take such other actions as may be necessary to comply with the Code and with all other applicable future laws, regulations, published rulings and judicial decisions, in order to ensure that the interest on the Bonds will remain excluded from federal gross income, to the extent any such actions can be taken by the City.
- (b) The City covenants and agrees that (1) it will use the proceeds of the Bonds as soon as practicable and with all reasonable dispatch for the purposes for which the Bonds are issued, and (2) it will not invest or directly or indirectly use or permit the use of any proceeds of the Bonds or any other funds of the City in any manner, to take or omit to take any action, that would cause the Bonds to be "arbitrage bonds" within the meaning of Section 148(a) of the Code.
- (c) The City covenants and agrees that it will not use any portion of the proceeds of the Bonds, including any investment income earned on such proceeds, directly or indirectly, in a manner that would cause any Bond to be a "private activity bond" within the meaning of Section 141(a) of the Code.
- **Section 802.** Survival of Covenants. The covenants contained in this Article shall remain in full force and effect notwithstanding the defeasance of the Bonds pursuant to Article VII hereof or any other provision of this Resolution until the final maturity date of all Bonds Outstanding.
- **Section 803. Qualified Tax-exempt Obligations.** The Bonds are designated as "qualified tax-exempt obligations" for the purposes of Section 265(b)(3) of the Code.

ARTICLE IX

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS

Section 901. Disclosure Requirements. The City hereby covenants with the Purchaser and the Beneficial Owners (as defined in the Disclosure Certificate) to provide and disseminate such information as is required by Rule 15c2-12 (as defined in the Disclosure Certificate) and is further set forth in the Disclosure Certificate. Such covenant shall be for the benefit of and enforceable by the Purchaser and such Beneficial Owners.

Section 902. Failure to Comply with Continuing Disclosure Requirements. In the event the City fails to comply in a timely manner with its covenants contained in the preceding section, the Purchaser and/or any such Beneficial Owner may make demand for such compliance by written notice to the City. In the event the City does not remedy such noncompliance within 10 days of receipt of such written notice, the Purchaser or any such Beneficial Owner may in its discretion, without notice or demand, proceed to enforce compliance by a suit or suits in equity for the specific performance of such covenant or agreement contained in the preceding section or for the enforcement of any other appropriate legal or equitable remedy as the Purchaser and/or any such Beneficial Owner shall deem effectual to protect and enforce any of the duties of the City under such preceding section.

ARTICLE X

MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

Section 1001. Annual Audit. Annually, promptly after the end of the Fiscal Year, the City will cause an audit to be made of its Funds and Accounts for the preceding Fiscal Year by a certified public accountant or firm of certified public accountants.

Within 30 days after the completion of each such audit, a copy thereof shall be filed in the office of the Clerk and made available on EMMA. Such audit shall at all times during the usual business hours of the City be open to the examination and inspection by any taxpayer, any Owner of the Bonds or by anyone acting for or on behalf of such taxpayer or Owner. Upon payment of the reasonable cost of preparing and mailing the same, a copy of any annual audit will, upon request, be sent to any Owner or prospective Owner.

As soon as possible after the completion of the annual audit, the governing body of the City shall review such audit, and if the audit discloses that proper provision has not been made for all of the requirements of this Resolution, the City shall promptly cure such deficiency.

Section 1002. Amendments. The rights and duties of the City and the Owners, and the terms and provisions of the Bonds or of this Resolution, may be amended or modified at any time in any respect by resolution of the City with the written consent of the Owners of not less than a majority in principal amount of the Bonds then Outstanding, such consent to be evidenced by an instrument or instruments executed by such Owners and duly acknowledged or proved in the manner of a deed to be recorded, and such instrument or instruments shall be filed with the Clerk, but no such modification or alteration shall:

- (a) extend the maturity of any payment of principal or interest due upon any Bond;
- (b) effect a reduction in the amount which the City is required to pay as principal of or interest on any Bond;

- (c) permit preference or priority of any Bond over any other Bond; or
- (d) reduce the percentage in principal amount of Bonds required for the written consent to any modification or alteration of the provisions of this Resolution.

Any provision of the Bonds or of this Resolution may, however, be amended or modified by resolution duly adopted by the governing body of the City at any time in any legal respect with the written consent of the Owners of all of the Bonds at the time Outstanding.

Without notice to or the consent of any Owners, the City may amend or supplement this Resolution for the purpose of curing any formal defect, omission, inconsistency or ambiguity therein or in connection with any other change therein which is not materially adverse to the interests of the Owners.

Every amendment or modification of the provisions of the Bonds or of this Resolution, to which the written consent of the Owners is given, as above provided, shall be expressed in a resolution adopted by the governing body of the City amending or supplementing the provisions of this Resolution and shall be deemed to be a part of this Resolution. A certified copy of every such amendatory or supplemental resolution, if any, and a certified copy of this Resolution shall always be kept on file in the office of the Clerk, and shall be made available for inspection by the Owner of any Bond or a prospective purchaser or owner of any Bond authorized by this Resolution, and upon payment of the reasonable cost of preparing the same, a certified copy of any such amendatory or supplemental resolution or of this Resolution will be sent by the Clerk and filed on EMMA. A copy of every amendatory or supplemental resolution shall be sent to the surveillance group of any rating agency then maintaining a rating on the Bonds.

Any and all modifications made in the manner hereinabove provided shall not become effective until there has been filed with the Clerk a copy of the resolution of the City hereinabove provided for, duly certified, as well as proof of any required consent to such modification by the Owners of the Bonds then Outstanding. It shall not be necessary to note on any of the Outstanding Bonds any reference to such amendment or modification.

The City shall furnish to the Paying Agent a copy of any amendment to the Bonds or this Resolution which affects the duties or obligations of the Paying Agent under this Resolution.

Section 1003. Notices, Consents and Other Instruments by Owners. Any notice, consent, request, direction, approval or other instrument to be signed and executed by the Owners may be in any number of concurrent writings of similar tenor and may be signed or executed by such Owners in person or by agent appointed in writing. Proof of the execution of any such instrument or of the writing appointing any such agent and of the ownership of Bonds, if made in the following manner, shall be sufficient for any of the purposes of this Resolution, and shall be conclusive in favor of the City and the Paying Agent with regard to any action taken, suffered or omitted under any such instrument, namely:

- (a) The fact and date of the execution by any person of any such instrument may be proved by a certificate of any officer in any jurisdiction who by law has power to make acknowledgements within such jurisdiction that the person signing such instrument acknowledged before such officer the execution thereof, or by affidavit of any witness to such execution.
- (b) The fact of ownership of Bonds, the amount or amounts, numbers and other identification of Bonds, and the date of holding the same shall be proved by the Bond Register.

In determining whether the Owners of the requisite principal amount of Bonds Outstanding have given any request, demand, authorization, direction, notice, consent or waiver under this Resolution, Bonds owned by the City shall be disregarded and deemed not to be Outstanding under this Resolution, except that, in determining whether the Owners shall be protected in relying upon any such request, demand, authorization, direction, notice, consent or waiver, only Bonds which the Owners know to be so owned shall be so disregarded. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Bonds so owned which have been pledged in good faith shall not be disregarded as aforesaid if the pledgee establishes to the satisfaction of the Owners the pledgee's rights so to act with respect to such Bonds and that the pledgee is not the City.

Section 1004. Further Authority. The officers and officials of the City, including the Mayor and Clerk, are hereby authorized and directed to execute all documents and take such actions as they may deem necessary or advisable in order to carry out and perform the purposes of this Resolution and to make ministerial alterations, changes or additions in the foregoing agreements, statements, instruments and other documents herein approved, authorized and confirmed which they may approve, and the execution or taking of such action shall be conclusive evidence of such necessity or advisability.

Section 1005. Severability. If any section or other part of this Resolution is for any reason held invalid, the invalidity thereof shall not affect the validity of the other provisions of this Resolution.

Section 1006. Governing Law. This Resolution shall be governed exclusively by and construed in accordance with the applicable laws of the State.

Section 1007. Effective Date. This Resolution shall take effect and be in full force from and after its passage by the governing body of the City.

(REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK)

PASSED by the governing body of the City on March 8, 2022.

CITY OF LEAVENWORTH, KANSA	Y 0	OF LEA	VENW	ORTH,	KANS	AS
----------------------------	-----	--------	------	-------	------	----

(SEAL)	
	Camalla M. Leonhard, Mayor
ATTEST:	
Sarah Bodensteiner, City Clerk	
CEF	RTIFICATE
of the Resolution of the governing body of governing body at a regularly scheduled med	t the above and foregoing is a true and correct copy f the City of Leavenworth, Kansas, adopted by the eting held on March 8, 2022, as the same appears of has not been modified, amended or repealed and is
DATED: March 8, 2022.	
	Sarah Bodensteiner, City Clerk
(SEAL)	

EXHIBIT A (FORM OF BOND)

Unless this certificate is presented by an authorized representative of The Depository Trust Company to the issuer or its agent for registration of transfer, exchange or payment, and any certificate issued is registered in the name of Cede & Co. or such other name as requested by an authorized representative of The Depository Trust Company and any payment is made to Cede & Co., ANY TRANSFER, PLEDGE OR OTHER USE HEREOF FOR VALUE OR OTHERWISE BY OR TO ANY PERSON IS WRONGFUL since the registered owner hereof, Cede & Co., has an interest herein.

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA STATE OF KANSAS COUNTY OF LEAVENWORTH CITY OF LEAVENWORTH GENERAL OBLIGATION BOND SERIES 2022-A

No. R			\$
Rate of Interest:	Maturity Date: September 1, 20	Dated Date: March 8, 2022	CUSIP 522229
REGISTERE	D OWNER: CEDE & CO.		
PRINCIPAL	AMOUNT		

The City of Leavenworth, in the County of Leavenworth, State of Kansas, (the "City") for value received acknowledges itself to be indebted to and promises to pay, but solely from the sources hereinafter pledged, to the registered owner identified above, or registered assigns as hereinafter provided, on the maturity date identified above, the principal amount identified above, and in like manner to pay, as of the Record Dates as hereinafter provided, interest on such principal amount from the date of this Bond or from the most recent interest payment date to which interest has been paid prior to the registration date set forth below at the rate of interest per annum set forth above semiannually on March 1 and September 1 of each year (the "Interest Payment Dates") commencing March 1, 2023, until said principal amount is paid.

The principal of and premium, if any, on this Bond shall be payable in lawful money of the United States of America at the office of the Treasurer of the State of Kansas, Topeka, Kansas, (the "Paying Agent" and "Bond Registrar") upon presentation of this Bond for payment and cancellation. The interest on this Bond shall be payable in lawful money of the United States of America by check or draft of the Paying Agent by mailing to the registered owner thereof at the address appearing on the registration books of the City maintained by the Bond Registrar or at such other address as is furnished in writing by such registered owner to the Bond Registrar at the close of business on the 15th day of February or August next preceding the applicable interest payment date (the "Record Dates"). The full faith, credit and resources of the City are hereby pledged for the payment of the principal of and interest on this Bond and the issue of which it is a part as the same respectively become due.

This Bond is one of a duly authorized series of Bonds of the City aggregating the principal amount of \$1,450,000 (the "Bonds") issued for the purposes set forth in Ordinance No. _____ of the City (the "Ordinance"). This Bond and the series of Bonds of which it is a part are issued by the authority of and in full compliance with the provisions, restrictions and limitations of the Constitution and Laws of the State of Kansas, including K.S.A. 10-101 to 125, inclusive,

as amended, K.S.A. 10-620 to 10-632, inclusive, Charter Ordinance No. 56 of the City, and all amendments thereof, acts supplemental thereto, the Ordinance, Resolution No. Boothe City (the "Resolution") and all other provisions of the laws of the State of Kansas applicable thereto.

The Bonds are issued in fully registered form in the denomination of \$5,000 each or authorized integral multiples thereof. This Bond may be exchanged at the principal office of the Bond Registrar for a like aggregate principal amount of Bonds of the same maturity of other authorized denominations upon the terms set forth in the authorizing Ordinance and the Resolution.

At the option of the City, the Bonds or portions thereof maturing in the years 2031 and thereafter may be called for redemption and payment prior to maturity on September 1, 2030, and thereafter in whole or in part at any time in such order as may be determined by the City (selection of Bonds within the same maturity to be by lot by the Bond Registrar in such manner as it shall determine) at a redemption price of 100% of the principal amount redeemed, plus accrued interest to date of redemption.

[Each of the Bonds maturing on ______, 20___, (the "Term Bonds") shall also be subject to mandatory redemption and payment prior to maturity beginning on ______, 20___, and on each ______ 1 thereafter to and including ______ 1, 20____, pursuant to the redemption schedule set forth in the Resolution at the Redemption Price of 100% (expressed as a percentage of the principal amount) plus accrued interest thereon to the Redemption Date.]

Bonds will be redeemed in integral multiples of \$5,000. If less than all Bonds are called for redemption, the Bond Registrar will, in the case of Bonds in denominations greater than \$5,000, treat each \$5,000 of face value as though it were a separate Bond.

In the event of any such redemption, the Paying Agent shall give notice of such call by mailing a copy of the redemption notice by first class mail, postage prepaid, not less than thirty (30) days prior to the date of such redemption to the registered owner of each Bond to be redeemed at the address shown on the registration books maintained by the Bond Registrar. Failure to give such notice by mailing to the registered owner of any Bond, or any defect therein, shall not affect the validity of any proceedings for the redemption of other Bonds. Any notice mailed as provided herein shall be conclusively presumed to have been duly given, whether or not the owner of such Bonds received the notice.

The City and the Bond Registrar may deem and treat the person in whose name this Bond is registered as the absolute owner hereof for the purpose of receiving payment of, or on account of, the principal hereof, or redemption price hereof and interest due hereon and for all other purposes.

This Bond is transferable by the registered owner hereof in person or by his attorney duly authorized in writing at the principal office of the Bond Registrar, but only in the manner, subject to the limitations and upon payment of the charges provided in the Resolution, and upon surrender and cancellation of this Bond. The City shall pay out of the proceeds of the Bonds or from other funds all costs incurred in connection with the issuance, transfer, exchange, registration, redemption or payment of the Bonds except (a) the reasonable fees and expenses in connection with the replacement of a Bond or Bonds mutilated, stolen, lost or destroyed or (b) any tax or other governmental charge imposed in relation to the transfer, exchange, registration, redemption or payment of the Bonds. Upon such transfer a replacement Bond or Bonds of authorized denominations of the same maturity and for the same aggregate principal amount will be issued to the transferee in exchange therefore.

It is hereby certified and declared that all acts, conditions and things required to be done and to exist precedent to and in the issuance of this Bond have been properly done and performed and do exist in due and regular form and manner as required by the Constitution and Laws of the State of Kansas, and that the total indebtedness of said City, including this series of bonds, does not exceed any constitutional or statutory limitation.

This Bond shall not be valid or become obligatory for any purpose until the Certificate of Authentication and Registration hereon shall have been lawfully executed by the Bond Registrar.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the said City of Leavenworth, in the State of Kansas, by its governing body, has caused this Bond to be executed by its Mayor and attested by its City Clerk by their manual with its corporate seal to be affixed, all as of the 30th day of March, 2022.

	CITY OF LEAVENWORTH, KANSAS
	(manual)
	Mayor
ATTE (SEAL) ************************************	EST:(manual) City Clerk ************************************
	ENTICATION AND REGISTRATION
This Bond is one of the City of Lea 2022-A described in the within mentioned I	avenworth, Kansas, General Obligation Bonds, Series Resolution.
Registration Date:	_
	OFFICE OF THE STATE TREASURER Topeka, Kansas, as Bond Registrar and Paying Agent
Ву	
I.D.#:	*************
	TE OF CITY CLERK
I, the undersigned, City Clerk of the this Bond has been duly registered in my of	e City of Leavenworth, Kansas, do hereby certify that fice according to law as of March 30, 2022.
WITNESS my hand and official sea	1.
	(manual) City Clerk
(SEAL) ************************************	**************************************
CERTIFICATE	OF STATE TREASURER

A-3

OFFICE OF THE TREASURER, STATE OF KANSAS

I, LYNN W. ROGERS, Treasurer of complete transcript of the proceedings leading my office and that this Bond was re-	the State of Kansas, do hereby certify that a full and ng up to the issuance of this Bond has been filed in egistered in my office according to law this
WITNESS my hand and official seal.	
	LYNN W. ROGERS TREASURER OF THE STATE OF KANSAS
	ByState Treasurer
(SEAL) ************************************	**************************************
FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the under	signed does (do) hereby sell, assign and transfer to
(Name	and Address)
the Bond to which this assignment is a standing in the name of th	Taxpayer Identifying No.) affixed in the outstanding principal amount of e undersigned on the books of the Treasurer of the undersigned does (do) hereby irrevocably constitute as attorney to transfer said Bond on the books stitution in the premises.
Dated	Name
	Social Security or Taxpayer Identifying No.
	Signature (Sign Here Exactly as Name(s) Appear on Face of Certificate)
	Signature guaranty:
	By
*************	*************

EXHIBIT B

(DTC LETTERS OF REPRESENTATIONS)

The Depository Trust Company

A subsidiary of the Depository Trust & Clearing Corporation

BLANKET ISSUER LETTER OF REPRESENTATIONS

(To be completed by Issuer and Co-Issuer(s), if applicable)

CITY OF LEAVENWORTH, KANSAS (Name of Issuer and Co-Issuer(s), if applicable) April 13, 2021 (Date) The Depository Trust Company 18301 Bermuda Green Drive Tampa, FL 33647 Attention: Underwriting Department Ladies and Gentlemen: This letter sets forth our understanding with respect to all issues (the "Securities") that Issuer shall request to be made eligible for deposit by The Depository Trust Company ("DTC"). Issuer is: (Note: Issuer shall represent one and cross out the other.) the State of Kansas [incorporated in] [formed under the laws of] To induce DTC to accept the Securities as eligible for deposit at DTC, and to act in accordance with DTC's Rules with respect to the Securities, Issuer represents to DTC that issuer will comply with the requirements stated in DTC's Operational Arrangements, as they may be amended from time to time. Very truly yours, Note: Schedule A contains statements that DTC City of Leavenworth, Kansas believes accurately describe DTC, the method of effecting book-entry transfers of securities distributed through DTC, and certain related matters. Nańcy D. Bauder, Mayor (Print Name) 100 North 5th Street (Street Address) Leavenworth, Kansas 66048 (Country) (State) (Zip Code) 913-684-0335 (Phone Number) cwilliamson@firstcity.org (E-mail

SAMPLE OFFERING DOCUMENT LANGUAGE DESCRIBING BOOK-ENTRY-ONLY ISSUANCE

(Prepared by DTC--bracketed material may be applicable only to certain issues)

- 1. The Depository Trust Company ("DTC"), New York, NY, will act as securities depository for the securities (the "Securities"). The Securities will be issued as fully-registered securities registered in the name of Cede & Co. (DTC's partnership nominee) or such other name as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC. One fully-registered Security certificate will be issued for [each issue of] the Securities, [each] in the aggregate principal amount of such issue, and will be deposited with DTC. [If, however, the aggregate principal amount of [any] issue exceeds \$500 million, one certificate will be issued with respect to each \$500 million of principal amount, and an additional certificate will be issued with respect to any remaining principal amount of such issue.]
- DTC, the world's largest securities depository, is a limited-purpose trust company organized under the New York Banking Law, a "banking organization" within the meaning of the New York Banking Law, a member of the Federal Reserve System, a "clearing corporation" within the meaning of the New York Uniform Commercial Code, and a "clearing agency" registered pursuant to the provisions of Section 17A of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. DTC holds and provides asset servicing for over 3.5 million issues of U.S. and non-U.S. equity issues, corporate and municipal debt issues, and money market instruments (from over 100 countries) that DTC's participants ("Direct Participants") deposit with DTC. DTC also facilitates the post-trade settlement among Direct Participants of sales and other securities transactions in deposited securities, through electronic computerized book-entry transfers and pledges between Direct Participants' accounts. This eliminates the need for physical movement of securities certificates. Direct Participants include both U.S. and non-U.S. securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies, clearing corporations, and certain other organizations. DTC is a wholly-owned subsidiary of The Depository Trust & Clearing Corporation ("DTCC"). DTCC is the holding company for DTC, National Securities Clearing Corporation and Fixed Income Clearing Corporation, all of which are registered clearing agencies. DTCC is owned by the users of its regulated subsidiaries. Access to the DTC system is also available to others such as both U.S. and non-U.S. securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies, and clearing corporations that clear through or maintain a custodial relationship with a Direct Participant, either directly or indirectly ("Indirect Participants"). DTC has a Standard & Poor's rating of AA+. The DTC Rules applicable to its Participants are on file with the Securities and Exchange Commission. More information about DTC can be found at www.dtcc.com.
- 3. Purchases of Securities under the DTC system must be made by or through Direct Participants, which will receive a credit for the Securities on DTC 's records. The ownership interest of each actual purchaser of each Security ("Beneficial Owner") is in turn to be recorded on the Direct and Indirect Participants' records. Beneficial Owners will not receive written confirmation from DTC of their purchase. Beneficial Owners are, however, expected to receive written confirmations providing details of the transaction, as well as periodic statements of their holdings, from the Direct or Indirect Participant through which the Beneficial Owner entered into the transaction. Transfers of ownership interests in the Securities are to be accomplished by entries made on the books of Direct and Indirect Participants acting on behalf of Beneficial Owners. Beneficial Owners will not receive certificates representing their ownership interests in Securities, except in the event that use of the book-entry system for the Securities is discontinued.
- 4. To facilitate subsequent transfers, all Securities deposited by Direct Participants with DTC are registered in the name of DTC's partnership nominee, Cede & Co., or such other name as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC. The deposit of Securities with DTC and their registration in the name of Cede & Co. or such other DTC nominee do not effect any change in beneficial ownership. DTC has no knowledge of the actual Beneficial Owners of the Securities; DTC's records reflect only the identity of the Direct Participants to whose accounts such Securities are credited, which may or may not be the Beneficial Owners. The Direct and Indirect Participants will remain responsible for keeping account of their holdings on behalf of their customers.

(To Blanket Issuer Letter of Representations)

- 5. Conveyance of notices and other communications by DTC to Direct Participants, by Direct Participants to Indirect Participants, and by Direct Participants and Indirect Participants to Beneficial Owners will be governed by arrangements among them, subject to any statutory or regulatory requirements as may be in effect from time to time. [Beneficial Owners of Securities may wish to take certain steps to augment the transmission to them of notices of significant events with respect to the Securities, such as redemptions, tenders, defaults, and proposed amendments to the Security documents. For example, Beneficial Owners of Securities m ay wish to ascertain that the nominee holding the Securities for their benefit has agreed to obtain and transmit notices to Beneficial Owners. In the alternative, Beneficial Owners may wish to provide their names and addresses to the registrar and request that copies of notices be provided directly to them.]
- [6. Redemption notices shall be sent to DTC. If less than all of the Securities within an issue are being redeemed, DTC's practice is to determine by lot the amount of the interest of each Direct Participant in such issue to be redeemed.]
- 7. Neither DTC nor Cede & Co. (nor any other DTC nominee) will consent or vote with respect to Securities unless authorized by a Direct Participant in accordance with DTC's MMI Procedures. Under its usual procedures, DTC mails an Omnibus Proxy to Issuer as soon as possible after the record date. The Omnibus Proxy assigns Cede & Co.'s consenting or voting rights to those Direct Participants to whose accounts Securities are credited on the record date (identified in a listing attached to the Omnibus Proxy).
- 8. Redemption proceeds, distributions, and dividend payments on the Securities will be made to Cede & Co., or such other nominee as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC. DTC's practice is to credit Direct Participants' accounts upon DTC's receipt of funds and corresponding detail information from Issuer or Agent, on payable date in accordance with their respective holdings shown on DTC's records. Payments by Participants to Beneficial Owners will be governed by standing instructions and customary practices, as is the case with securities held for the accounts of customers in bearer form or registered in "street name," and will be the responsibility of such Participant and not of DTC, Agent, or Issuer, subject to any statutory or regulatory requirements as may be in effect from time to time. Payment of redemption proceeds, distributions, and dividend payments to Cede & Co. (or such other nominee as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC) is the responsibility of Issuer or Agent, disbursement of such payments to Direct Participants will be the responsibility of DTC, and disbursement of such payments to the Beneficial Owners will be the responsibility of Direct and Indirect Participants.
- [9. A Beneficial Owner shall give notice to elect to have its Securities purchased or tendered, through its Participant, to [Ten der/Remarketing] Agent, and shall effect delivery of such Securities by causing the Direct Participant to transfer the Participant's interest in the Securities, on DTC's records, to [Tender/Remarketing] Agent. The requirement for physical delivery of Securities in connection with an optional tender or a mandatory purchase will be deemed satisfied when the ownership rights in the Securities are transferred by Direct Participants on DTC's records and followed by a book-entry credit of tendered Securities to [Tender/Remarketing] Agent's DTC account.]
- 10. DTC may discontinue providing its services as depository with respect to the Securities at any time by giving reasonable notice to Issuer or Agent. Under such circumstances, in the event that a successor depository is not obtained, Security certificates are required to be printed and delivered.
- 11. Issuer may decide to discontinue use of the system of book-entry-only transfers through DTC (or a successor securities depository). In that event, Security certificates will be printed and delivered to DTC.
- 12. The information in this section concerning DTC and DTC's book-entry system has been obtained from sources that Issuer believes to be reliable, but Issuer takes no responsibility for the accuracy thereof.

RESOLUTION NO. B-2310

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AND DIRECTING THE ISSUANCE OF TEMPORARY NOTES, SERIES A2022 OF THE CITY OF LEAVENWORTH, KANSAS, IN THE AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF \$2,125,000 FOR THE PURPOSE OF PROVIDING FUNDS TO PAY THE COSTS OF CERTAIN IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS IN THE CITY.

WHEREAS, the governing body of the City of Leavenworth, Leavenworth County, Kansas, (the "City") has in accordance with the requirements of law and Resolution No. B-2305 of the City adopted February 8, 2022, heretofore authorized the construction of certain general improvements together with all things necessary and incidental thereto in the City the maximum estimated amount of \$2,125,013 (the "Improvements") under the authority of Charter Ordinance No. 56 of the City; and

WHEREAS, the City has no funds to finance the costs incurred by the City in providing the Improvements until Bonds are issued by the City for such purposes; and

WHEREAS, it is necessary for the City to provide funds to meet the City's obligations incurred in connection with the Improvements prior to the completion of the Improvements and it is desirable and in the interest of the City that such funds be raised by the issuance of temporary notes of the City, said notes to be issued by the City pursuant to the provisions of K.S.A. 10-123, as amended.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY OF LEAVENWORTH, KANSAS, that for the purpose of providing funds to pay the costs of making the Improvements until Bonds can be issued therefore, the governing body of the City be, and it is hereby, authorized to issue its Temporary Notes, Series A2022, in the aggregate principal amount of Two Million One Hundred Twenty-five Thousand Dollars (\$2,125,000) (the "Notes"). The Notes will consist of fully registered notes in the denomination of \$5,000 or any integral multiple thereof. The Notes shall initially be registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of the Depository Trust Company, New York, New York, (along with its successors and assigns, the "Securities Depository") to which payments of principal on the Notes will be made by the Treasurer of the State of Kansas, Topeka, Kansas, (the "Note Registrar" and "Paying Agent") in lawful money of the United States of America upon presentation of the Notes for payment and cancellation. Individual purchases of Notes will be made in book-entry form only. Purchasers will not receive certificates representing their interest in Notes purchased. It is anticipated that during the term of the Notes, the Securities Depository will make book-entry transfers among those financial institutions (the "Participants") for whom it effects book entry transfers and pledges of securities deposited with it from time to time and receive and transmit payment of principal of and interest on the Notes to the Participants until and unless the Note Registrar authenticates and delivers Replacement Notes to the beneficial owners as described in subsection (b). The Notes shall be dated March 30, 2022, shall become due in the amounts on the Stated Maturities (subject to redemption and payment prior to their Stated Maturities as provided herein), and shall bear interest at the rates per annum as follows:

MATURITY	PRINCIPAL	INTEREST
DATE	AMOUNT	RATE
December 1, 2023	\$1,580,000	
December 1, 2024	270,000	1, 2, 2
December 1, 2025	275,000	

The Notes shall bear interest at the above specified rates (computed on the basis of a 360-day year of twelve 30-day months) and shall be payable in lawful money of the United States of America semiannually on June 1 and December 1 of each year commencing June 1, 2023, (the "Interest Payment Dates") until the principal of the Notes has been paid or at redemption prior to maturity, by check or draft of the City to the registered owners thereof appearing on the books of the Note Registrar as of the 15th day of the month next preceding such interest payment date (the "Record Dates").

- (b) (1) If the City determines (A) that the Securities Depository is unable to properly discharge its responsibilities, or (B) that the Securities Depository is no longer qualified to act as a securities depository and registered clearing agency under the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, or (C) that the continuation of a book-entry system to the exclusion of any Notes being issued to any registered owner of any of the Notes ("Registered Owner") other than Cede &Co. is no longer in the best interests of the beneficial owners of the Notes, or (2) if the Note Registrar receives written notice from Participants having interests in not less than 50% of the Notes as are outstanding and unpaid, as shown on the records of the Securities Depository (and certified to such effect by the Securities Depository), that the continuation of a book-entry system to the exclusion of any Notes being issued to any Registered Owner other than Cede & Co. is no longer in the best interests of the beneficial owners of the Notes, then the Note Registrar shall notify the Registered Owners of such determination or such notice and of the availability of certificates to beneficial owners requesting the same, and the Note Registrar shall register in the name of and authenticate and deliver replacement Notes to the beneficial owners or their nominees in principal amounts representing the interest of each, making such adjustment as it may find necessary or appropriate as to accrued interest; provided, that in the case of a determination under (1)(A) or (1)(B) of this subsection (b), the City may after consultation with the Note Registrar select a successor securities depository in accordance with subsection (c) hereof to effect book-entry transfers. In such event, all references to the Securities Depository herein shall relate to the period of time when the Securities Depository has possession of at least one Note. Upon the issuance of any replacement Notes ("Replacement Notes"), all references herein to obligations imposed upon or to be performed by the Securities Depository shall be deemed to be imposed upon and performed by the Note Registrar, to the extent applicable with respect to such Replacement Notes. If the Securities Depository resigns and the City is unable to locate a qualified successor of the Securities Depository in accordance with subsection (c) hereof, then the Note Registrar shall authenticate and cause delivery of Replacement Notes to the beneficial owners thereof, as provided herein. The Note registrar may rely on information from the Securities Depository and its Participants as to the names of the beneficial owners of the Notes. The cost of printing, registration, authentication and delivery of Replacement Notes shall be paid for by the City.
- (c) In the event the Securities Depository resigns, is unable to properly discharge its responsibilities, or is no longer qualified to act as a securities depository and registered clearing agency under the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, the City may appoint a successor Securities Depository provided the Note Registrar receives written evidence satisfactory to it with respect to the ability of the successor Securities Depository to discharge its responsibilities. Any such successor Securities Depository shall be a securities depository which is a registered clearing agency under the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, or other applicable statute or regulation that operates a securities depository upon reasonable and

customary terms. The Note Registrar upon its receipt of any of the Notes for cancellation shall cause the delivery of such Notes to the successor Securities Depository in appropriate denominations and form as provided herein.

(d) The execution and delivery of the Representation Letter to the Depository Trust Company, New York, New York, by the Mayor in the form attached hereto as Exhibit A with such changes, omissions, insertions and revisions as the Mayor shall deem advisable, is hereby authorized, and execution of the Representation Letter by the Mayor shall be conclusive evidence of such approval. The Representation Letter shall set forth certain matters with respect to, among other things, notices, consents and approvals by the owners (both the Registered Owner and beneficial owners) of the Notes and payments of the principal of and interest on the Notes. The principal amount of the Notes shall not exceed the lesser of the amount of Bonds to be issued to permanently finance the costs of making the Improvements or the estimate of the cost of making the Improvements as prepared by the project engineer and approved by the governing body of the City.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City may call the Notes for redemption and payment prior to maturity in whole or in part, (selection of the Notes to be redeemed to be determined by the City) at any time on or after June 1, 2023, at the redemption price (the "Redemption Price") of 100% (expressed as a percentage of the principal amount), plus accrued interest thereon to the date of such redemption (the "Redemption Date").

Notes shall be redeemed only in the principal amount of \$5,000 or any integral multiple thereof. When less than all of the Notes are to be redeemed and paid prior to their stated maturity, such Notes shall be redeemed in such manner as the City shall determine. Notes of less than a full stated maturity shall be selected by the Note Registrar in \$5,000 units of principal amount in such equitable manner as the Note Registrar may determine. In the case of a partial redemption of Notes by lot when Notes of denominations greater than \$5,000 are then outstanding, then for all purposes in connection with such redemption each \$5,000 of face value shall be treated as though it were a separate Note of the denomination of \$5,000. If it is determined that one or more, but not all, of the \$5,000 units of face value represented by any Note is selected for redemption, then upon notice of intention to redeem such \$5,000 unit or units, the Registered Owner or the Registered Owner's duly authorized agent shall forthwith present and surrender such Note to the Note Registrar: (1) for payment of the Redemption Price and interest to the Redemption Date of such \$5,000 unit or units of face value called for redemption, and (2) for exchange without charge to the Registered Owner thereof, for a new Note or Notes of the aggregate principal amount of the unredeemed portion of the principal amount of such Note. If the Registered Owner of any such Note fails to present such Note to the Paying Agent for payment and exchange as aforesaid, such Note shall, nevertheless, become due and payable on the redemption date to the extent of the \$5,000 unit or units of face value called for redemption (and to that extent only).

Unless waived by any Registered Owner of Notes to be redeemed, if the City shall call any Notes for redemption and payment prior to the stated maturity thereof, the City shall give written notice of its intention to call and pay said Notes to the Note Registrar, and the Underwriter. In addition, the City shall in accordance with the requirements of K.S.A. 10-129, as amended, cause the Note Registrar to give written notice of redemption to the Registered Owners of said Notes. Each of said written notices shall be deposited in the United States first class mail not less than 30 days prior to the Redemption Date.

All official notices of redemption shall be dated and shall contain the following information: (a) the Redemption Date; (b) the Redemption Price; (c) if less than all outstanding Notes are to be redeemed, the identification (and, in the case of partial redemption of any Notes, the respective principal amounts) of the Notes to be redeemed; (d) a statement that on the

Redemption Date the Redemption Price will become due and payable upon each such Note or portion thereof called for redemption and that interest thereon shall cease to accrue from and after the Redemption Date; and (e) the place where such Notes are to be surrendered for payment of the Redemption Price, which shall be the principal office of the Paying Agent. The failure of any Registered Owner to receive notice given as heretofore provided or an immaterial defect therein shall not invalidate any redemption.

Prior to any Redemption Date, the City shall deposit with the Paying Agent an amount of money sufficient to pay the Redemption Price of all the Notes or portions of Notes that are to be redeemed on such Redemption Date. Official notice of redemption having been given as aforesaid, the Notes or portions of Notes to be redeemed shall become due and payable on the Redemption Date, at the Redemption Price therein specified, and from and after the Redemption Date (unless the Issuer defaults in the payment of the Redemption Price) such Notes or portion of Notes shall cease to bear interest.

In addition to the foregoing notice, the Paying Agent is also directed to comply with any mandatory or voluntary standards then in effect for processing redemptions of municipal securities established by the State or the Securities and Exchange Commission. Failure to comply with such standards shall not affect or invalidate the redemption of any Note.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Notes shall contain recitals and be in the form as prescribed by law. The Notes shall in addition to all other requirements be subject to the terms and conditions of the agreement entitled "Agreement Between Issuer and Agent" by and between the City and the Treasurer of the State of Kansas.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Notes shall be executed by the facsimile or manual signature of the Mayor and City Clerk or Deputy City Clerk and the seal of the City shall be printed or affixed thereon and, after such execution and the registration of the Notes by the City Clerk and the State Treasurer, Topeka, Kansas, hereby designated as both the City's Note Registrar and Paying Agent in connection with the Notes, they shall be countersigned by the City Clerk or Deputy City Clerk and delivered to the purchaser thereof upon receipt of the purchase price thereof, said purchase price to be not less than the principal amount thereof plus accrued interest. The proceeds of the Notes shall be placed in the City Treasury and applied solely to pay the costs of the Improvements and the costs of issuing the Notes.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Notes shall be issued and sold to,

, in accordance with both the Note
Bid Form (the "Note Bid Form") between such purchaser and the City, the execution of which
Note Bid Form is hereby authorized, and the terms and conditions of this Resolution.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City covenants and agrees that no part of the proceeds of the Notes or other proceeds shall be used, at any time, directly or indirectly in a manner which if such use had been reasonably anticipated on the date of the issuance of the Notes would have caused the Notes to be or become "Arbitrage Bonds" within the meaning of Section 148 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and the Regulations of the Treasury Department thereunder proposed or in effect at the time of such use applicable to obligations issued on the date of issuance of the Notes.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Notes are designated as "qualified tax-exempt obligations" for the purposes of Section 265(b)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code").

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City hereby covenants and agrees that it will comply with and carry out all of the provisions of the Continuing Disclosure Certificate attached to the Final Certificate of the City included in the transcript of proceedings regarding the Notes. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Resolution, failure of the City to comply with the Continuing Disclosure Certificate shall not be considered an event of default of the City's obligations either under this Resolution or in connection with the Notes; provided, however, any owner of the Notes may take such actions as may be necessary and appropriate, including seeking mandate or specific performance by court order, to cause the City to comply with its obligations under this Section.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the form of the Preliminary Official Statement and the Official Statement, both of which will be dated as of the date set forth thereon, all in the form presented at the meeting at which this Resolution is adopted, are hereby approved, ratified and confirmed, and the execution, circulation and distribution thereof are thereby approved, ratified and confirmed for and on behalf of the City in substantially the form presented at this meeting.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the authorization of the Improvements is hereby ratified and affirmed.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and after its passage and approval.

IT IS SO RESOLVED.

PASSED and approved this 8th day of March, 2022.

CITY OF LEAVENWORTH, KANSAS

ATTEST:	Camalla M. Leonhard, Mayor	
Sarah Bodensteiner, City Clerk		
(SEAL)		

EXHIBIT A

(BLANKET ISSUER LETTER OF REPRESENTATION)

The Depository Trust Company

A subsidiary of the Depository Trust & Clearing Corporation

BLANKET ISSUER LETTER OF REPRESENTATIONS

(To be completed by Issuer and Co-Issuer(s), if applicable)

CITY OF LEAVENWORTH, KANSAS (Name of Issuer and Co-Issuer(s), if applicable) April 13, 2021 (Date) The Depository Trust Company 18301 Bermuda Green Drive Tampa, FL 33647 Attention: Underwriting Department Ladies and Gentlemen: This letter sets forth our understanding with respect to all issues (the "Securities") that Issuer shall request to be made eligible for deposit by The Depository Trust Company ("DTC"). Issuer is: (Note: Issuer shall represent one and cross out the other.) the State of Kansas fincorporated in | formed under the laws of | To induce DTC to accept the Securities as eligible for deposit at DTC, and to act in accordance with DTC's Rules with respect to the Securities, Issuer represents to DTC that issuer will comply with the requirements stated in DTC's Operational Arrangements, as they may be amended from time to time. Very truly yours, Note: Schedule A contains statements that DTC City of Leavenworth, Kansas believes accurately describe DTC, the method of effecting book-entry transfers of securities distributed through DTC, and certain related matters. Nańcy D. Bauder, Mayor (Print Name) 100 North 5th Street (Street Address) Leavenworth, Kansas 66048 (State) (Country) (Zip Code) 913-684-0335 (Phone Number) cwilliamson@firstcity.org (E-mail

SAMPLE OFFERING DOCUMENT LANGUAGE DESCRIBING BOOK-ENTRY-ONLY ISSUANCE

(Prepared by DTC--bracketed material may be applicable only to certain issues)

- 1. The Depository Trust Company ("DTC"), New York, NY, will act as securities depository for the securities (the "Securities"). The Securities will be issued as fully-registered securities registered in the name of Cede & Co. (DTC's partnership nominee) or such other name as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC. One fully-registered Security certificate will be issued for [each issue of] the Securities, [each] in the aggregate principal amount of such issue, and will be deposited with DTC. [If, however, the aggregate principal amount of [any] issue exceeds \$500 million, one certificate will be issued with respect to each \$500 million of principal amount, and an additional certificate will be issued with respect to any remaining principal amount of such issue.]
- DTC, the world's largest securities depository, is a limited-purpose trust company organized under the New York Banking Law, a "banking organization" within the meaning of the New York Banking Law, a member of the Federal Reserve System, a "clearing corporation" within the meaning of the New York Uniform Commercial Code, and a "clearing agency" registered pursuant to the provisions of Section 17A of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. DTC holds and provides asset servicing for over 3.5 million issues of U.S. and non-U.S. equity issues, corporate and municipal debt issues, and money market instruments (from over 100 countries) that DTC's participants ("Direct Participants") deposit with DTC. DTC also facilitates the post-trade settlement among Direct Participants of sales and other securities transactions in deposited securities, through electronic computerized book-entry transfers and pledges between Direct Participants' accounts. This eliminates the need for physical movement of securities certificates. Direct Participants include both U.S. and non-U.S. securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies, clearing corporations, and certain other organizations. DTC is a wholly-owned subsidiary of The Depository Trust & Clearing Corporation ("DTCC"). DTCC is the holding company for DTC, National Securities Clearing Corporation and Fixed Income Clearing Corporation, all of which are registered clearing agencies. DTCC is owned by the users of its regulated subsidiaries. Access to the DTC system is also available to others such as both U.S. and non-U.S. securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies, and clearing corporations that clear through or maintain a custodial relationship with a Direct Participant, either directly or indirectly ("Indirect Participants"). DTC has a Standard & Poor's rating of AA+. The DTC Rules applicable to its Participants are on file with the Securities and Exchange Commission. More information about DTC can be found at www.dtcc.com.
- 3. Purchases of Securities under the DTC system must be made by or through Direct Participants, which will receive a credit for the Securities on DTC 's records. The ownership interest of each actual purchaser of each Security ("Beneficial Owner") is in turn to be recorded on the Direct and Indirect Participants' records. Beneficial Owners will not receive written confirmation from DTC of their purchase. Beneficial Owners are, however, expected to receive written confirmations providing details of the transaction, as well as periodic statements of their holdings, from the Direct or Indirect Participant through which the Beneficial Owner entered into the transaction. Transfers of ownership interests in the Securities are to be accomplished by entries made on the books of Direct and Indirect Participants acting on behalf of Beneficial Owners. Beneficial Owners will not receive certificates representing their ownership interests in Securities, except in the event that use of the book-entry system for the Securities is discontinued.
- 4. To facilitate subsequent transfers, all Securities deposited by Direct Participants with DTC are registered in the name of DTC's partnership nominee, Cede & Co., or such other name as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC. The deposit of Securities with DTC and their registration in the name of Cede & Co. or such other DTC nominee do not effect any change in beneficial ownership. DTC has no knowledge of the actual Beneficial Owners of the Securities; DTC's records reflect only the identity of the Direct Participants to whose accounts such Securities are credited, which may or may not be the Beneficial Owners. The Direct and Indirect Participants will remain responsible for keeping account of their holdings on behalf of their customers.

- 5. Conveyance of notices and other communications by DTC to Direct Participants, by Direct Participants to Indirect Participants, and by Direct Participants and Indirect Participants to Beneficial Owners will be governed by arrangements among them, subject to any statutory or regulatory requirements as may be in effect from time to time. [Beneficial Owners of Securities may wish to take certain steps to augment the transmission to them of notices of significant events with respect to the Securities, such as redemptions, tenders, defaults, and proposed amendments to the Security documents. For example, Beneficial Owners of Securities m ay wish to ascertain that the nominee holding the Securities for their benefit has agreed to obtain and transmit notices to Beneficial Owners. In the alternative, Beneficial Owners may wish to provide their names and addresses to the registrar and request that copies of notices be provided directly to them.]
- [6. Redemption notices shall be sent to DTC. If less than all of the Securities within an issue are being redeemed, DTC's practice is to determine by lot the amount of the interest of each Direct Participant in such issue to be redeemed.]
- 7. Neither DTC nor Cede & Co. (nor any other DTC nominee) will consent or vote with respect to Securities unless authorized by a Direct Participant in accordance with DTC's MMI Procedures. Under its usual procedures, DTC mails an Omnibus Proxy to Issuer as soon as possible after the record date. The Omnibus Proxy assigns Cede & Co.'s consenting or voting rights to those Direct Participants to whose accounts Securities are credited on the record date (identified in a listing attached to the Omnibus Proxy).
- 8. Redemption proceeds, distributions, and dividend payments on the Securities will be made to Cede & Co., or such other nominee as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC. DTC's practice is to credit Direct Participants' accounts upon DTC's receipt of funds and corresponding detail information from Issuer or Agent, on payable date in accordance with their respective holdings shown on DTC's records. Payments by Participants to Beneficial Owners will be governed by standing instructions and customary practices, as is the case with securities held for the accounts of customers in bearer form or registered in "street name," and will be the responsibility of such Participant and not of DTC, Agent, or Issuer, subject to any statutory or regulatory requirements as may be in effect from time to time. Payment of redemption proceeds, distributions, and dividend payments to Cede & Co. (or such other nominee as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC) is the responsibility of Issuer or Agent, disbursement of such payments to Direct Participants will be the responsibility of DTC, and disbursement of such payments to the Beneficial Owners will be the responsibility of DTC, and disbursement of such payments to the Beneficial Owners will be the responsibility of DTC.
- [9. A Beneficial Owner shall give notice to elect to have its Securities purchased or tendered, through its Participant, to [Ten der/Remarketing] Agent, and shall effect delivery of such Securities by causing the Direct Participant to transfer the Participant's interest in the Securities, on DTC's records, to [Tender/Remarketing] Agent. The requirement for physical delivery of Securities in connection with an optional tender or a mandatory purchase will be deemed satisfied when the ownership rights in the Securities are transferred by Direct Participants on DTC's records and followed by a book-entry credit of tendered Securities to [Tender/Remarketing] Agent's DTC account.]
- 10. DTC may discontinue providing its services as depository with respect to the Securities at any time by giving reasonable notice to Issuer or Agent. Under such circumstances, in the event that a successor depository is not obtained, Security certificates are required to be printed and delivered.
- 11. Issuer may decide to discontinue use of the system of book-entry-only transfers through DTC (or a successor securities depository). In that event, Security certificates will be printed and delivered to DTC.
- 12. The information in this section concerning DTC and DTC's book-entry system has been obtained from sources that Issuer believes to be reliable, but Issuer takes no responsibility for the accuracy thereof.

Policy Report CONSIDER PURCHASE OF ADDITIONAL IT STORAGE March 8, 2022

Prepared By:

IT Specialist II

Reviewed By:

Penny Holler

Assistant City Manager

Pàul Kramer City Manager

ISSUE:

Consider the scheduled purchase of additional IT storage from ISG Technology for \$95,744.88.

BACKGROUND:

City staff identified in 2020 that the City's IT storage capacity would become insufficient primarily due to growth from large files such as videos from police body cameras and public works sewer lines. When 85% of storage is in use, the City's system performance can be affected. To address the need for greater storage, the 2021 Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) budget included \$110,000 for the purchase of IT storage. COVID impacts to operations delayed the immediate need for additional storage and the project was moved to the 2022 CIP budget.

The City currently has 137 terabytes of storage space for our servers. More than 110 terabytes of space have been used, leaving 27 terabytes available. The level of storage has grown about 1% each month and will soon impact overall system performance. To ensure adequate storage and redundant backup space, 84 terabytes at the two data storage locations (168 terabytes total) is needed. Staff anticipates that the additional storage will support City needs for approximately four years.

ISG Technology designed and built the City's current HPE Nimble Storage System. Through the State of Kansas NASPO contract, the City receives competitive rates on the purchase of additional HPE Nimble shelves and equipment.

RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends the City Commission approve the purchase of 168 terabytes of IT storage from ISG Technology for \$95,744.88.

BUDGET IMPACT:

\$110,000 was approved in the 2022 CIP budget for this project.

ATTACHMENTS:

Attached is the proposal created by ISG Technology for the purchase of HPE Nimble Shelves.



We have prepared a proposal for you

HPE NIMBLE SHELVES

Quote # KC-MR-166005 Version 5

Prepared for:

City of Leavenworth

Camalla Leonhard cleonhard@firstcity.org

12980 Metcalf Ave #550 Overland Park, KS 66213-2707 www.isgtech.com 9138266100



HPE Nimble-Nimble CS3000 AF-160533 - Fire Department

Description		Price	Qty	Ext. Price
#40399BX	- Computer Equipment HPE Contract with State of Kansas			
Q8B50A	HPE NS CS ES2 84TB HDD 2.4TB Cache Shelf	\$42,432.73	1	\$42,432.73
Q8F92A	HPE NS NEMA 5-15P to C13 US Power Cord.	\$1.00	2	\$2.00
HT7A1A1	X5E HPE NS CS ES2 84TB HDD2.4TB Che Shf Supp	\$2,127.15	1	\$2,127.15
P005-003	Tripp Lite 3ft Power Cord Extension Cable C14 to C13 Heavy Duty 15A 14AWG 3' - 14 Gauge - 250 V AC / 15 A - Black - 3 ft Cord Length	\$6.00	2	\$12.00

Subtotal: \$44,573.88

HPE Nimble-Nimble CS3000 AF-160672 - Police Department

Description		Price	Qty	Ext. Price
#40399BX	- Computer Equipment HPE Contract with State of Kansas			
Q8B50A	HPE NS CS ES2 84TB HDD 2.4TB Cache Shelf	\$42,432.73	1	\$42,432.73
Q8F92A	HPE NS NEMA 5-15P to C13 US Power Cord.	\$1.00	2	\$2.00
HT7A1A1	X5E HPE NS CS ES2 84TB HDD2.4TB Che Shf Supp	\$2,127.15	1	\$2,127.15
ACF600	SE NetShelter Fan Tray - 2U - 135 CFM	\$173.56	2	\$347.12
P005-003	Tripp Lite 3ft Power Cord Extension Cable C14 to C13 Heavy Duty 15A 14AWG 3' - 14 Gauge - 250 V AC / 15 A - Black - 3 ft Cord Length	\$6.00	2	\$12.00
Freight	Estimated shipping and handling charge	\$250.00	1	\$250.00

Subtotal: \$45,171.00

ISG Professional Services

Description		Price	Qty	Ext. Price
ISG Pro Services	ISG Professional Services - Estimated services required to Install Nimble Upgrades - Please see attached SOW fro a complete breakdown of services involved with this quote.	\$250.00	24	\$6,000.00

Subtotal: \$6,000.00

Quote #KC®IR-166005 v5 Page: 2 of 3

12980 Metcalf Ave #550 Overland Park, KS 66213-2707 www.isgtech.com 9138266100



HPE NIMBLE SHELVES

Prepared by:

Kansas City
Michael Reece
785.266.2585
Fax 9135411595
mreece@isgtech.com

Prepared for:

City of Leavenworth 100 North 5th Street Leavenworth, KS 66048 Camalla Leonhard (913) 680-2546 cleonhard@firstcity.org

Quote Information:

Quote #: KC-MR-166005

Version: 5

Delivery Date: 02/15/2022 Expiration Date: 02/28/2022

Quote Summary

Description	Amount
HPE Nimble-Nimble CS3000 AF-160533 - Fire Department	\$44,573.88
HPE Nimble-Nimble CS3000 AF-160672 - Police Department	\$45,171.00
ISG Professional Services	\$6,000.00

Total: \$95,744.88

Taxes, shipping, handling and other fees may apply. We reserve the right to cancel orders arising from pricing or other errors.

ISG Technology

City of Leavenworth

Signature:		Signature:		
Name:	Michael Reece	Name:	Camalla Leonhard	
Title:	Account Manager	Date:	8	
Date:	02/15/2022			

Quote #KC-MR-166005 v5 Page: 3 of 3

POLICY REPORT FIRST CONSIDERATION ORDINANCE TO RESCIND SPECIAL USE PERMIT – 539 NIPPER LANE

MARCH 8, 2022

Prepared by:

Sarah Bodensteiner, CMC

City Clerk

Reviewed by:

Paul Kramer

City Manager

ISSUE:

The issue before the City Commission is to place on first consideration an ordinance to rescind the Special Use Permits (SUP) allowing a child care center at 539 Nipper Lane.

BACKGROUND:

The Special Use Permit allowing a Child Care Center at 539 Nipper Lane was approved on August 14, 2001 by passage of Ordinance 7498. The child care center owner, which previously occupied the property, has moved from Leavenworth and closed the child care center. The Special Use Permit is no longer applicable to the property.

ACTION REQUIRED:

Consensus to place an ordinance on first consideration to rescind the Special Use Permit as presented.

Attachments:

Draft Ordinance

(Summary Published in the Leavenworth Times on March	2022
--	------

ORDINANCE NO. ____

AN ORDINANCE TO RESCIND THE SPECIAL USE PERMIT ALLOWING A CHILD CARE CENTER AT 539 NIPPER LANE, LEAVENWORTH KANSAS.

WHEREAS, under Appendix A of the City of Leavenworth Code of Ordinances, Development Regulations, Section 2.04 C, the Governing Body of the City of Leavenworth is given the power to administratively discontinue or rescind a special use permit; and

WHEREAS, property owners approved for a special use permit my request that such special use permit be rescinded.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY OF LEAVENWORTH:

Section 1. That the following special use permit is hereby rescinded by request of the property owner:

Name	Location	Use	Original Special Use Ordinance to Rescind	Date Approved
Alice Valverde	539 Nipper Lane	Child Care Center	7498	08/14/2001

Section 2. This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after its passage by the Governing Body, and its publication once in the official City newspaper.

	7	
PASSED AND APPROVED by Kansas, on this day of March, 2022.	the City Commission of the City	of Leavenworth,
	Camalla M. Leonhard, Mayor	
{Seal}		
ATTEST:		
Sarah Bodensteiner, CMC, City Clerk	_	